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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

(HUo¢ : Auuan)

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2546/2003 | 254572002 | 2544/2001 | 254372000

s19leDINNIsaa
528,755 484,690 435,576 508,478
Total Sales
s19leisou
535,385 492,921 444,737 522,650
Total Revenues
fils (ar6nu) duéiu
100,184 77,573 64,084 61,820
Gross Profit (Loss)
fals (oanu) nd
42,860 29,811 7,846 17,341
Net Profit (Loss)
~unsngsou
407,751 356,566 355,203 409,049
Total Assets
Hl-usou
73,170 36,849 57,597 91,290
Total Liabilities
‘QUJOOKNORU
Y 334,577 319,717 297,606 317,759
Shareholders’ Equity
dasarals nSeaswldisou (Sovax)
8.45 6.05 1.76 3.32
Net Profit (Loss) Margin (%)
dasacduINuGo usorhionu (Sovas)
v 13.10 9.66 2.55 5.25
Return on Equity (%)
d6SINAADUINUDIN"UNSHESIU (So9ax)
11.22 8.38 2.05 3.88
Return on Total Assets (%)
fials (o9anu) GoKu (Un)
3.06 2.13 0.56 1.24
Earning Per Share (Baht)
Pulunacariu (Un)
2.80 2.00 0.55 2.00
Dividend per Share (Baht)
dasadulunadarials nd (Sovaz)
91.46 93.93 98.14 161.47
Pay Out Ratio (%)
YarIuamUTys (uan)
” 23.90 22.84 21.26 22.70
Book Value (Baht)
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GENERAL INFORMATION

uSun nilanAiaa MNSsU Paa (UHIBU)
ﬁ%ammé’anqw’h PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (PATO)
Usznauganavandazinnfiduazinda  1aedunudagie
N douuIsn una.195
°1ﬂ7nmu1my'ﬁ' 3388 nuumnzsyiaalu uwaewenzl we%p1e nyenng 10310
Tnsdwi 0 2318 5612-19, 0 2318 0360-9
Ins 15 0 2318 0367

Email Address : pato1@cscoms.com, pato2@cscoms.com

Iswm 569 ﬁﬂuqm ’IWﬂ‘iiNU’N‘QJ T8 12 DUUNKUY 3 FTUALWINET B1LNaLHBs 299Ia H“/l‘iﬂi’]ﬂ’]i

Tnsdwn 0 2324 0890-1 In3 13 0 2324 0187

nupanziligusaszuds 140 duuan dausuru Wity 14 dwru yarafiasaldhuas 10 un

v LA 4

nnanusava: 10

didupnafus

Pty

UARG910000U 1
uwn:1dguusen  :  USYNAUISUHINKHANNSNG (UszinAlng) daria

W auurys : uwIYN Ko nany 1lagnziivu 3759
USEn  audgansIndd ana
267/1 0. dszaeg s wes 1 uda n3unw 10800

Inyéwni 0 2587 8080 N3 13 0 2586 0301

fivsSnuangrae  :  “ninounuwAWSUTNG
72 DUUNKIINY LUVANWTZUAT ﬂE\?L‘Yl‘W 10200

In3éwn 0 2221 7511
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PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (PATO)

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd. (PATO) is the manufacturer and distributor of Agrochemical products.

The head office is located at 3388 Pato Building, New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi, Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310

Company Registration No. Bor Mor Jor 195.

Head office : Pato Building 3388 New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi, Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : 0 2318 5612-19, 0-2318 0360-9

Fax : 0 2318 0367

E-mail Address : pato1@cscoms.com and pato2@cscoms.com

Factory : 569 Bangpoo Industrial Estate, Soi 12 Patana 3 Road, Praksa Sub-district, Muang District, Samutprakarn

Tel : 0 2324 0890-1 Fax : 0 2324 0187

Registered capital 140 million baht of total 14 million shares. Par value 10 baht per share.

Companies of which Pato hold share greater than 10%

None

Other References
Register

Auditor

Legal Adviser

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

Mr. Jadesada Hungsapruek Registration No. 3759
Dhamniti Auditting Co., Ltd.

267/1 Pracharaj sai 1 Road Bangsue, Bangkok 10800

Tel : 0 2587 8080 Fax : 0 2586 0301

Rompoh Law Office
72 Maharaj Road, Pranakorn, Bangkok 10200
Tel : 0 2221 7511
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COMPANY PROFILE
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Pato Chemical Industry Plc was established on 6 October 1973 to import, formulate, and distribute pesticide in Thailand.

Its registered capital was at first 1 million baht with total ordinary shares of 1,000 at par value of 1,000 baht. PATO went public,
and changed its name to PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED in October 1993 then continued to sell its

ordinary stocks for 3,000,000 shares at Bt 55 per share, valued at Baht 10 per share in July 1995. PATO increased its capital

to 140 million Baht. The company has been listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand in August 1995. In April 1997, ANCOM

BERHAD Co Ltd a listed company in Malaysia, has become a major shareholder of 10.50% of the company’s total ordinary

shares. In April 1998 Nissho Iwai Corporation, Japan took 10% stake of Pato or 1,400,000 shares from minor shareholders and

became 15% or 2,100,000 shares while Nissho Iwai (Thailand) took 5% stake or 700,000 shares in 2000. Audit committee was

appointed in December 1999. In 2001, Pato has disposed its stake in affiliated company, Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd. The

common shares of 4,588,077 were sold and transferred to a new investor and left with 531,923 shares which represents 4.93%.

Acron has now changed its name to Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd. with current registered capital of 108 million Baht.

MAJOR CHANGES AND DEVELOPMENT

January 2003
April 2003
June 2003
August 2003
October 2003
October 2003

November 2003 :
December 2003 :
December 2003 :

License to be formulator and distributor of Patozine 90 (Atrazine 90% WG) Patometryn 80% WG (Ametryn 80% WG)
License to be formulator and distributor of Patotap 50 (Cartap Hydrochloride 50% WP)

License to be formulator and distributor of Gibto (Giberrellic acid 5% SL)

License to be formulator and distributor of Butus 70 EC (Butachlor + Propanil 70% EC)

License to be formulator and distributor of Ethephon (Ethephon 52% SL) waz Hera (Quinaphos 25% EC)

Nissho Iwai Corporation of Japan, a major shareholder of Pato Chemical Industry Plc currently holding
2.1 million shares representing a 15% stake, informs that the chemical department of Nissho Iwai
Corporation and Nichimen Corporation of Japan will merge to form NN Chemical Corporation. The name
of shareholder of Pato under Nissho Iwai corporation will be changed to NN Chemical Corporation
accordingly.

License to be formulator and distributor of J.L. Slug (Metaldehyde 20% SC)

License to be formulator and distributor of Patosave-85 (Carbaryl 85% WP)

Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd. (PPIC), a related company of Pato Chemical Industry PCL. (Pato), has
successfully made a restructuring agreement with a foreign investor who will subscribe to 4 million newly
issued shares at par value of 10 baht per share before April 30, 2003 for the production of extruded PMMA
sheets and coating of all types of cast and extruded plastics. In addition, a 60 million baht banking credit
facility has been officially approved on December 29, 2003 to support this new project which is expected
to start commercial operation in Q3 of 2004. In view of this, Pato is confident that PPIC will have the
capability to tepay all its outstanding debts. On December 30, 2003 Pato has signed an agreement with
PPIC to reschedule PPIC’s payment of the total outstanding debt of 30.56 million baht to Pato with a one-
year grace period in monthly installments until the obligations are fully settled. Under this agreement, Pato

will be granted an option to convert up to 15 million baht of the outstanding debt into equity.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
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1. Name

Age
Number of Shares

Education

Experiences
1989 - 2001

1984 - Present

1983 - Present
1973 - Present

: Mr. Metha Trillit
. 66
1,900,000 shares or 13.57 %

. B.Sc. Chemical Engineering,

Tunghai University, Taiwan

Chairman,

Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.
Director,

Asia Mineral Processing Co., Ltd.
Director, Kentex Properties Co., Ltd.
Chairman/President,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

. Name

Age

Number of Shares
Education
Experiences

1989 - 2001

1983 - Present

1973 - Present

: Mr. Chaovut Pojanalai
© 60
. 1,340,000 shares or 9.57 %

: Mechanic school from China

Director,

Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.
Managing Director,

Asia Mineral Processing Co., Ltd.
Signatory Director,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

. Name

Age
Number of Shares

Education

Experiences
2003 - Present

1973 - Present

1973 - Present

: Mr. Surachai Choengvivatkit
. 55
307,500 or 219 %

: DAP program from IOD
: MS. 3

Director,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Managing Director,

Senta Quilting Ltd. Part.

Managing Director, Tang Jin Yoo Shop

Number of Share changes during the year : -

. Name

Age

Number of Shares
Education
Experiences

1992 - Present
1995 - Present
1983 - Present
1989 - 1997

: Mr. Suvit Wesaratchawest
. 52
: 803,300 shares or 5.74%

: Mini M.B.A. Thamasart University

Director, Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Director, Sahawat Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Director, Kentex Properties Co., Ltd.

- NITHNNT UTEN aNATEU WA AN 9 WMNIIN 91NA

nﬂiLﬂﬁauLLﬂmﬁﬂmuﬁﬂuﬁﬁN'mm s

- Director, Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -
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5. Name

Age
Number of Shares

Education

Experiences
1988 - Present
1996 - Present

1998 - 2002

: Dr. Viwat Trillit
. 35

: 1,400,000 shares or 10%

: DAP program from 10D

. DBA International Business USIU, USA

: MBA Rutgers University, USA

: B.Sc. (Chemical Engineering)

University of Rochester, USA

Director, Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Vice President/Administration Manager (Acting)
Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Director, Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.

(Presently called Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.)

Number of Share changes during the year : -

. Name

Age
Number of Shares

Education

Experiences

2003 - Present

2002 - 2003

2001 - 2002

1998 - Present

1993 - Present
1995 - 1996

: Mr. Chaiwat Chandarasrivongs
. 67

. None

: M.Sc. (Plant Pathology & Mycology)

University of London

: D.I.C. Imperial College

: B.Sc. (Botany)

Chulalongkorn University

Advisor to Prof. Dr. Krasae Chanawongse

Prime Minister’s advisor

Advisor, Minister of Education Ministry

(Mr. Pongphol Adireksarn)

Advisor, Minister to the office of the Prime Minister
(Prof. Dr. Krasae Chanawongse)

Member of Audit Commitee,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Director, Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Inspector General,

Ministry of Agriculture and Co-operative

Number of Share changes during the year : -

. Name

Age
Number of Shares

Education

Experiences

1998 - Present

1997 - Present
1993 - Present

1987 - Present
1973 - 1997

: Mr. Lertchai Leelaryonkul

© 65

: None

: DAP program from 10D

Master of Economics (NDSU) U.S.A.

Chairman of Audit Committee,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Director, L/A Holdings Co., Ltd.
Independent Director,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Director, Hong Sang Thai Co., Ltd.
Director, MCC Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

Annual Report 2003 | swwowus:=310 2546




8.

10.

11.

i)
218
9

o o da
ARIURUNDD

fAonRANIANL

132 30NV
T 2540 - ifaqiiu

1 2536 - ffaaiiu

il 2519 - 2534

: @s. 908N USsauun
711
sl

“
il
: Usganien 12dnenen a3 uazsmaluladifgiuld

amIngnapuieiaiheada s nigawism

- NITHNIIANA al

UIEN ww[mLﬂﬁqm MNTIN MR (NAIT9)

- NIINNTD 32

UTEN wﬂmﬁﬁqm ARNTIH ANA (NAU)

P 4
- ﬁ”ﬂ’)ﬂﬁ’] f313173¢8

aInganEaIen a3

(@fnaimIufumInandainuaten a3 2 )

nmﬂﬁﬂuuﬂmﬁﬁmuﬁu’luﬂﬁw'mm S

. 8o

21¢

3
o v da
AWIURUNDD

fAonRANIIAN

132 30NN
T 2541 - ifaqiiu
1l 2541 - 2543
2538 - 2546
2546 - ffaaiiu
2542 - 2545
2545 - ffaatiu
1l 2544 - 2547

P

1 2547 - a9t

=T =T =Y

: Dato Siew Ka Wei
c 481l

1o
HH

: M.Sc. (Operational Research), Imperial College
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- N9 3E3An1angs Nylex (Malaysia) Berhad, Malaysia

- N334N13 Tamco Corporate Holdings Berhad, Malaysia

- U523n 330N Tameo Corporate Holdings Berhad, Malaysia
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: B.Sc. Kobe University, Japan
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- General Manager, Chemical Department,

Nissho Iwai Corp. Tokyo, Japan
ifaaiiufia NN Chemical Corporation
General Manager, Chemical Department,

Nissho Iwai America Corp., USA.
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: Mr. Masayuki Hashimoto
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1
HHN

1 B.Sc. (Economics) Doshisha University, Japan

- NIINMT UIEN ww[mmﬁaqcﬂ TMNTIN A0 (NAIT9)

- General Manager, Energy & Chemicals Department,

Nissho Iwai (Thailand) Ltd. Part

- Manager, Chemical and Mineral Department,

Fine Chemical Section,

Nissho Iwai Corp., Osaka, Japan
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8.

10.

Name
Age
Nuber of Shares

Education

Experiences
1997 - Present

1993 - Present

1976 - 1991

: Dr. Chongrak Prichanond
7

: None

. Ph.D. Science and Wood Technology,

New York University, USA.

Member of Audit Commitee,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Independent Director,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Assistant Professor, Kasetsart University
(Former President of Kasetsart University

for 2 Sessions)

Number of Share changes during the year : -

. Name

Age
Number of Shares

Education

Experiences
1998 - Present
1998 - 2000
1995 - 2003
2003 - Present
1999 - 2002
2002 - Present
2001 - 2004
2004 - Present

: Dato Siew Ka Wei
1 48

. None

: M.Sc. (Operational Research), Imperial College

: B.Sc. (Engineering), Imperial College

Director, Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
Director, Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.

Deputy Group Managing Director, Ancom Berhad, Malaysia
Group Managing Director, Ancom Berhad, Malaysia
Director, Nylex (Malaysia) Berhad, Malaysia

Group Managing Director, Nylex (Malaysia) Berhad, Malaysia
Director, Tamco Corporate Holdings Berhad, Malaysia

Chairman, Tamco Corporate Holdings Berhad, Malaysia

Number of Share changes during the year : -

Name

Age

Number of Shares
Education
Experiences

2000 - Present
2000 - Present

1996 - 2001

: Mr. Michifumi Watanabe
. 51

. None

: B.Sc. Kobe University, Japan

Director, Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
General Manager, Chemical Department,

Nissho Iwai Corp. Tokyo, Japan

Or NN Chemical Corporation

General Manager, Chemical Department,

Nissho Iwai America Corp., USA.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

11.Name

Age

Number of Shares
Education
Experiences

2000 - Present
2000 - Present

1994 - 2001

: Mr. Masayuki Hashimoto
. 43

: None

. B.Sc. (Economics) Doshisha University, Japan

Director, Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
General Manager, Energy & Chemicals Department,
Nissho Iwai (Thailand) Ltd., Part.

Manager, Chemical and Mineral Department,

Fine Chemical Section,

Nissho Iwai Corp., Osaka, Japan

Number of Share changes during the year : -
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Name
Age . 56

: Mr. Sumet Cheongwiwatkit
Number of Shares : None
Education : High School in Penang, Malaysia
Experiences
1992 - Present - Marketing Advisor,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.
1983 - Present - Director, Kentex Properties Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : 30,000 shares reduced

Name : Mr. Chanwut Kooniyapantu
Age 1 48

Number of Shares : 69,000 shares or 0.49%

Education : B.Sc. General Agriculture, Faculty of Agriculture,
Kasetsart University

Experiences

1992 - Present - Marketing Manager,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : 50,000 shares increased

Name : Mr. Warat Lapserisakul
Age .62
Number of Shares : None
Education : B.Sc. Chemical Engneering

National Chengkung Univerrsity, Taiwan
Experiences

2003 - Present

Factory Manager

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

1998 - 2003 Assistan Factory Manager
Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

Name : Mr. Visut Vanitcharoenkarn
Age : 43

Number of Shares : 1,800 shares or 0.01%

Education : M.B.A. Finance, Bangkok University
: Bachelor in Account,
Ramkhamhaeng University
Experiences

1986 - Present - Accounting Manager,
Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

Name : Mr. Joseph Ng
Age : 43
Number of Shares : None
Education : MB.A.
: Bachelor in Economics & Accounting UCLA, USA
Experiences

1996 - Present

Finanee Manager
Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

1995 - 1997 Director

Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.
1998 - Present

Managing Director
Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.
(Presently called Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.)

Number of Share changes during the year : -
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17. Name
Age . 45

: Mr. Rapin Theingthum

Number of Shares : None

Education : MBA Chamber of Commerce University.
. Certificate of Business Development Programe,
Solihull College, Bermingham, U.K.
: B.Sc. Faculty of Agriculture, Kasetsart University
Experiences

1998 - Present

Area Sales Manager,

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

1997 - 1998 - Senior Accounting Manager,
Zeneca Agro Asiatic Co., Ltd.
1995 - 1997 - Product Manager, Zeneca Agro Asiatic Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

18. Name
Age 0 37

: Mr. Kawinharn Palaharn

Number of Shares : None

Education : M.Sc. Entomology, Kasetsart University
: B.Sc. Plant Management Technology
King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology Lat Krabang
Experiences

2003 - Present

Research and Development Manager

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co.,Ltd.

2001 - 2003 - Promotion Manager
Pato Chemical Industry Public Co.,Ltd.
1997 - 2001 - R & D Officer

Yip In Tsoi & Jacks Co.,Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : -

19.Name
Age 1 43

: Mrs. Parichart Manuthasna

Number of Shares : 9,500 shares or 0.07%

Education : B.A., Faculty of Arts,
Major in English Minor in Acting
Chulalongkorn University
Experiences

1996 - Present

Office Manger / Company Secretary
Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd.

Number of Share changes during the year : 7,500 shares increased

Prominent Directors and Independent Directors

Directors, namely Mr. Lertchai Leelayanakul, Dr. Chongrak
Prichanont and Mr. Chaiwat Chandarasrivongs are neither the
company’s executive nor employee who receives salary from
the company or its group. They are independent from major
shareholders and are well capable to protect the benefits of
minority shareholders. They are not current shareholders of

the company.
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Qualifications of the Management
Pato Chemical Industry Plc verifies that all of its directors and

executives are well qualified by the Public Company Act B.E. 2535 clause
68 and by the announcement of Securities Exchange commission on Rules,
Conditions, and Procedure of Public Offering and its Approval dated 18 May
1992.
Records of Unlawful Conduct

During the past 10 years prior to the submission of approval, all of
the company’s directors and executives has no criminal records of insolvent
or unlawful conduct related to assets or misconduct according Stock Ex-
change of Thailand Act B.E. 2535. The are not currently having any lawsuits
pursuing in court.
Loans between management and company or offiliated companies

- None -
The company comprises of :

1. Board of Directors

2. Audit Committee

3. Management team

There are 19 Board of Directors and Management as of December
31, 2003. Mr.Metha Trillit is to co-sign with either Mr.Chaovuth Pojanalai with
company seal affixed to affect company documents.
(1) Powers and Obligations of the Board of Directors

- The board of directors shall elect one of the directors to be the

chairman of the board.

In case the board of directors deems it appropriate, the board
may elect one or several directors to be vice-chairman or vice-chairmen. The
vice-chairman shall have duties stipulated in the articles of association in the
businesses assigned by the chairman of the board.

- At a meeting of the board of directors, at least one half of the
total number of directors present shall form a quorum. In case the chairman
of the board is not present at the meeting or cannot perform his or her duty,
and if there is vice-chairman, the vice chairman present at the meeting shall
be the chairman of the meeting. If there is no vice-chairman or if there is a
vice-chairman who is not present at the meeting or cannot perform his or her
duty, the directors present at the meeting shall elect one of the directors to
be the chairman of the meeting. Decisions at the meeting shall be made by
majority vote. Each director is entitled to one vote, but a director who has
interests in any matter shall not be entitied to vote on such matter. In the
event of a tie vote, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

- No director shall operate any business which has the same
nature as and is in competition with the business of the company or become
a partner in an ordinary partnership or become a partner with unlimited
liability in a limited partnership or become a director of a private company or
any other company operating business which has the same nature as and is
in competition with the business of the company, unless he or she notifies
the shareholder meeting prior to the resolution for his or her appointment.

- A director shall notify the company without delay when the
following events occur:

- He or she has a direct or indirect interest in any contract which
is made by the company with the other company or shareholders during a
fiscal year (if any).
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- He or she holds shares or debentures of the company or an
affiliated company, and shall indicate the total number of shares increasing or
decreasing during a fiscal year (if any).

- The chairman is authorized to cosign with one of the other 2
directors with company’s seal to affect company documents or the board of
directors shall appoint authorized directors to cosign with company’s seal.
(2)  Appointment of Directors

2.1 Directors of the company have not been appointed by the
nominating committee.

2.2 At present, eight directors represent major shareholders.

2.3 The company shall have a board of directors comprising of at
least 5 directors to conduct the business of the company, not less than half
of whom shall reside within the Kingdom.

2.4 The directors shall be elected at the shareholder meeting in
accordance with the following rules and procedures:

- Each shareholder shall have a number of votes equal to the
number of shares held.

- Each shareholder may exercise all the votes he or she has
under (1) to elect one or several persons as director or directors but the
shareholder shall not allot his or her votes to any person in any number.

- After the vote, the candidates shall be ranked in order
descending from the highest number of votes received to the lowest, and
shall be appointed as directors in that order until all of the director positions
are filled. Where the votes cast for candidates in descending order are tied,
which would otherwise cause the number of directors to be exceeded, the
chairman shall make the decision for the remaining appointment.

Vacancy of Directors

- At every annual general meeting, one-third of the directors shall
retire. If the number of directors is not a multiple of three, the number of
directors closest to one-third shall retire for the first year. For the second year
after the registration of the company, the retirement shall be selected by
drawing lots. In subsequent years, the director who has held office longest
shall retire.

- Apart from vacation upon the expiry of his or her term, a
director shall vacate office upon :

1) death

2) resignation

3) lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited
characteristics under Section 68; of Public Limited Companies Act BE.2535

4) Removal by a resolution of the shareholder meeting of not
less than three quarters of the number shareholders attending the meeting
who have the right to vote and who have shares totaling not less than half
of the number of shares held by the shareholders attending the meeting and
having the right to vote.

5) Removal by a court order.

- In the case of a vacancy in the board of directors for reasons
other than the expiration of the director’s term of office, the board of directors
shall elect a person who has the qualifications and who possesses no
prohibited characteristics under Section 68 as the substitute director at the
next meeting of the board of directors, unless the remaining term of office of
the said director is less than two months. The substitute director shall hold
office only for the remaining term of office of the director whom he or she
replaces. The resolution of the board of directors shall be by a vote of not
less than three-quarters of the number of directors remaining.
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Corporate Governance
Report on Corporate Governance adherence

1. Corporate Governance Policy

The company’s Board of Directors is aware of the importance of
Corporate Governance in increasing operational transparency and share-
holder confidence, creating thorough management and acting with caution for
the greatest benefit, and which can be subject to auditing.

2. Right of Shareholders

The company is steadfast in its aim to undertake business for the
satisfaction of shareholders and provision of good return on a continuous
and secure basis. The company holds a general shareholders meeting in
which there is a quorum and participants take part in considering various
agendas and acknowledge operational results. The company realizes the
right of shareholders to receive correct, sufficient, immediate and equal infor-
mation. Therefore, the company prepares documents and details which share-
holders should have knowledge of, and gives these to shareholders for their
consideration before the meeting. In the event the shareholder cannot attend
the meeting, the company includes a documentary consent of representation
together with the invitation to the meeting. With this documentary consent of
representation, the shareholder can give power of attorney to another person
or a member of the audit committee, to attend the meeting and exercise right
to vote according to the wishes of the shareholder. In addition, the company
makes a complete and correct record of the meeting, which can be checked
by shareholders.

3. Rights of those with interests

The company attaches importance to all affected groups, including
employees, customers, competitors, commercial creditors and the environ-
ment.

Employees : The company emphasizes unity among employees, working
together in a peaceful and facilitating atmosphere, and gives employees the
opportunity to develop their potential and to utilize their knowledge and ability
to help in creating progress for themselves and the company.

Customers : The company manufactures quality and standard
products with a fair price. In this regard, the company joined a core
group to help push for the Project for Manufacturing of Quality
Products under the Thai Crop Protection Association, including research
efforts for more products suited to geographic conditions, climate, and which
were disease-controllable with regard to insects and weeds, so as to
increase production for farmers. At the same time, through the help of a
work team with high knowledge and experience, the company also
emphasizes providing knowledge and correct product type usage and
correct and method of usage, for the safety of both farmers and consumers.

Environment : As all sides attach importance to the environment, the
production base has thus been moved to the Bangpoo Industrial Estate, with
cooperation given to all sides of government and private sectors. Cooperation
is given by strictly adhering to related conditions and regulations. Moreover,
the company realizes the danger of incorrect usage of chemical substances
and types, and has thus always undertaken to provide knowledge to all sides.
It has also undertaken research to find products that least affect the environment
while at the same time effectively increase production for farmers.

Annual Report 2003 | swwowus:=310 2546 m



4. miﬂizﬂguéﬁaﬁu

vigndadszgn dyffeuln muierionssums fuimauas

Afavu 1nIndumenTislssgadeany san naumtsgw
v3EmldiainIanen wﬂﬂﬂuawmﬂﬁquﬁumﬂﬁé'nw%'wa‘@hLﬁu
N33 nazmItssgauazien TsiiemsRmsanaswsiaaman
mmsﬁmm@mwé’ﬂw%’wévgnﬂ%v’e lumsdszyad 2546 Anssumisuas
NIINNTATIA amﬁiﬁ'mﬂi:qﬂﬂﬂw%auLw%m ﬂszmuﬁﬂszﬂguvlﬁ
\Walam lﬁ%'ﬁaﬁm?“w%m%ﬁﬁml,m aUMNL asanuAaulaed 32
UaZaSLNEADM TR UL BaDENI TRl
5 amefiiuagd e

amuznaamadl wtalunatmueuloug unugsiia wazey
UsanmuSEn LL@:@LLaﬂmﬁmﬂﬁ@ﬁLﬁumimuLqu‘ﬁ'ava%

auznsmmalddalddszuumugunisly mansa aumalu
WazARNHA 6

Sunanthiiwasenenssams

* ‘19/ A a' @) 1
AamenITNMSRannIINM TAUR Ul S 5MTINMT b
NIMNAUSNTINNNTANNTMLAY HAIT  AZLEBNNTINNIAUNILINTD
#aeau LuIDIUTTHIUNTINNIA M J09UIZIUNTINANIHRTNNAN
FotleauluAan13BeUseaUNTINNTHOL RN
* 1umsﬁi:<’guﬂmzﬂﬁums ﬁmﬁnﬁunw*smﬂim;mvlsiﬁaﬂ
L4 4 . Y . e e o d
nIfewilirasmunsINmInenNadeazidus Al ssgw Tunsmin
1 1 dl Gl 1 a wa v dl v v A
dazrwnasumaliogluiszgu wia T nsnsmufiwinld $d
A4 =, Y 1
309192 0UNIINNT el e mnssEm i Tuleou 81 lisises
a A W nem v AN 9w 4
Uszsunssnms wied wald wnsadfianihild 1¥nssunsden
“ 4 4 an o &
ﬂm;m LaannﬁumiﬂuﬂmLﬂuﬂs:ﬁwuluwﬂszﬂgu NMIIUBARLTVIA
dl A a U d! a a d!
maqmi:vguslmnm 899198 NITHMIAUATIIL BanTllunTasAz I
v | 4! a0 v a dl lda a a
Vusanssinsged uldslusadde i nSeant “veasazuunlu

'
A

3 v a 1 o U dl a A‘ A’ al
LTOIUL BNAZUWUUL BNNNY Iwﬂszﬁmsluwﬂizqmam SLANTUAN
& & a A
AL 89 LTUL 894
* Fawdlingsuns Usznavianis m"uﬂuiju " v Tu

v

A aa dl dld 1 a o <) I @ w
naﬂquluumqﬂﬂaaum NWBENLAEINY  LASLUUNITHASIUNY

DD e3°e

ANNTVDILTEN L%ul,wiazlﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂszqu %’ﬁaﬁummdauﬁa:ﬁu%@iﬁ&v’ﬁ

* pysumsdosudeliusnnmulaglidndy wind "l el
"’zyzynﬁﬁwﬁ’uu%ﬁ’w v3afjhavu w%aﬁur‘jlﬁuﬁu wiaanasluusm
wialuussmluiade

¢ smunsmaameilede wasilsiuam RELNEN TR
wianysumsaulu avim asneflefadanii wazUsiuan RGN
VDIUTHN ﬁwzﬁwagnﬁuu%ﬁww ADINITNNNTOIAAUATE
nysMIEawARNENULTE wWiandazniunm Ay eI TEY
6. anudaudemenadselont

- anenssmslinuisnemsfiiensdaudemanayslom]
waznemaniaelosiu uasldRansonedesauneuitanaysslom
davimn Tt aUiRmungsasvvasaaananninddimung
WanaTens

- mig}uaL‘éaﬂm{lﬂi’m”aﬁamdu

u%ﬁ’wﬁulﬂmﬂLLaﬁ%’ms@LLamwmiLLa:Ejﬁmi WU

smﬁaqﬂﬂaﬁ'Lﬁm%’aamﬁﬁﬁagjamﬂlummu‘%ﬁ’wvlﬂ%lﬁaﬂiﬂwﬁ

Environment : As all sides attach importance to the environment, the
production base has thus been moved to the Bangpoo Industrial Estate, with
cooperation given to all sides of government and private sectors. Cooperation
is given by strictly adhering to related conditions and regulations. Moreover, the
company realizes the danger of incorrect usage of chemical substances and
types, and has thus always undertaken to provide knowledge to all sides. It has
also undertaken research to find products that least affect the environment
while at the same time effectively increase production for farmers.

4, Shareholders meeting

The company holds a general shareholders meeting at a location
where it is convenient for directors, executives, and shareholders. Before
each meeting, the company prepares documents and these are assigned
to Thailand securities depository company limited which then undertakes to
send the meeting agenda and documents for prior consideration, as is
stipulated by stock exchange regulations. Directors and the Audit Committee
attended the general shareholders’ meeting held in 2003 in full force. The
Chairman of the meeting gave shareholders equal rights and freedom to ask
questions and express views.

5. Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors participates in setting policy, business plan
and company budget, and in seeing that the Management implements the set
plan.

The Board of Directors has set a system for internal control, auditing
and monitoring.

Powers and Obligations of the Board of Directors

* The board of directors shall elect one of the directors to be the

chairman of the board.

In case the board of directors deems it appropriate, the board
may elect one or several directors to be vice- chairman or vice-chairmen.
The vice-chairman shall have duties stipulated in the articles of association in
the businesses assigned by the chairman of the board.

* At ameeting of the board of directors, at least one half of the total
number of directors present shall form a quorum. In case the chairman of the
board is not present at the meeting or cannot perform his or her duty, and if
there is vice-chairman, the vice-chairman present at the meeting shall be the
chairman of the meeting. If there is no vice-chairman or if there is a vice-
chairman who is not present at the meeting or cannot perform his or her
duty, the directors present at the meeting shall elect one of the directors to
be the chairman of the meeting. Decisions at the meeting shall be made by
majority vote. Each director is entitied to one vote, but a director who has
interests in any matter shall not be entitled to vote on such matter. In the
event of a tie vote, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

* No director shall operate any business which has the same nature
as and is in competition with the business of the company or become a
partner in an ordinary partnership or become a partner with unlimited liability
in a limited partnership or become a director of a private company or any
other company operating business which has the same nature as and is in
competition with the business of the company, unless he or she notifies the
shareholder meeting prior to the resolution for his or her appointment.

* A director shall notify the company without delay when the
following events occur:

He or she has a direct or indirect interest in any contract

Annual Report 2003 | sawowus:z370 2546



UAK TIHNHENI IV RANN SN D UNILN TS UAZLHE N TAD

151 TATU I@ﬂ%‘ﬁ‘aguanmﬁamw%’uﬁ@mauﬁmmﬁ@ﬁwumiﬁu
Tl wmm%’uﬁa‘iaﬁaLﬁmﬁ’mumﬁmun’h\mﬁfmﬂﬁgnmﬂu,ws'@ia
1msmruagniuniens uanam5@'u§ﬁ15ﬂﬂﬁ1uﬂ:ﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬁqnu
msm?;mu,ma\amiﬁamawﬁnw%’wé@iaLam%msu‘%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ’uﬁﬁmiﬁa
AvasvdINSNERn I Asuuassiliafiash o wedayszsm
n3TMILaTNBUMIAsuLIasMsRansasndnnindde Meinem
AN IINMIMAURANNSWduazaaanannIndnelu 3 u vhms
ndaNTuivhnsdenienns
7. 93E5IWGING
u%lfmaan%’aﬁﬂﬂﬁaﬁ]Lﬁ'mﬁ'uwimmmwa\aﬂm:nﬁumi uaz
winew # eapfasiungrang fetedudneg Mideates Huane

'
A

fnwdidnes  eldgilAsfasindeduummidunisufianii
é’qﬂmw%a“m‘qﬁm Sufiasevsanind wasiisndleude  An
vigniausguwinnuatng st waifte Seenainladudisnei
8. n’nid’mqamaoniiunﬁﬁ‘lﬁL’ﬂuéu%mi

AUSNTINNSUSENRA WU 11 ¥ Usenaude

. . .
nasumsiduguims 3 ¥
A My & v a |
nssuman lalldiduduims 5 iu
NIINN1IATIA Y 3 ¥

9.  MININVIBLENGIUALS
ﬂi:ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ@'yQ’ﬁaﬁuﬁﬂlmﬁﬂﬁaﬁu‘?aﬁaz 27.24
ma\aﬁuﬁ’wm
foudfuszrmnsmatunssmagianaduyeaaidaiuuens
u%msmuéimﬁwLﬁumsmsﬂﬁmiamﬁ’aLﬁmaumnﬂmzmmmﬁa
Uaznaudsdunudiedunalrgngueng rndansmnimn ey
Wateluns DUMUUAZENANEIUA
10, A1ADLUVUATINNTUALHLIAS
- AABUUNUNTINANT u‘%i?mﬁiﬁﬁ’ﬂlﬁﬁﬂmza%nﬁumiﬁw
ABLUNY Lwimam;ssiﬁmﬂﬁﬂizquéﬁaﬁu
- AARLUNUELIMT Wuluasmsnmsuazulaunefiao:
nIHMILSEANA Sedonlssiunanssidinnuresuidnuazta
MaAiwRIBLTI TUAACTIM U%ﬁﬂﬁi@ﬁ’@ﬁu’amxm@nﬁunﬁ
ANMALLNY LwiL%’ﬂ%wmiﬁﬁﬁ’aﬂ'mammuﬁv'ﬁumjuaqm TMNITH
UAZHDNNGNER TWNTTHL NOHN Lﬁ'aﬁwmﬂumiﬁ'ﬂgm %ng}ﬂ,a
Tiiuwinau
- ehnauunulull 2546
MaauunUATusGY
- AMENTINANTIIWIN 12 N% ﬁnﬁdmﬁﬂﬁs:ﬂgwﬁwﬁu
U328 618,056.00 LN
AEIng : ﬂimmﬂé}’%’umwmﬁﬂﬂi:’gm ldfidwdan
Uz
- Lﬁ'mﬁwﬁu‘%mmé’uﬁﬂmi
l@emauunusIn 7,068,755.00 1 Foulsznaudg u
dow Tl Aeondedu e Guussiusen mdsiudie
WacaURLAg UAZNY NNUNBIYYH 15091ABeEN

1 4‘ 1
fAnaUENRa® = NN

which is made by the company with the other company or shareholders
during a fiscal year (if any)

- He or she holds shares or debentures of the company or an
affiliated company, and shall indicate the total number of shares increasing or
decreasing during a fiscal year (if any).

- The chairman is authorized to cosign with one of the other 2
directors with company’s seal to affect company documents or the board of
directors shall appoint authorized directors to cosign with company’s seal.
6. Conflict of interest

- The Board of Directors has received knowledge of items with
conflict of interest, and related items. These have come under careful consid-
eration. Besides, stock market regulations concerning the revelation of such
items have been adhered to.

- Protecting against the use of insider information

The company has a policy and method to prevent company
executives from using the company’s inside information for personal gain or
for the purchase of securities before the company’s financial statement is
disclosed to public. Anyone with no responsibility with compiling the financial
statement will have no access to information in the financial statement until
that financial statement is officially released to the public. Moreover, all
executives and personnel must immediately report to the company secretary
of any changes or additions to the securities they hold, so that this informa-
tion is each time reported to the Chairman of the Board.
7. Work ethics

The company has come out with a written code of ethics for the
Board of Directors and employees, to serve as a guideline for those con-
cered in executing their duties with honesty. The company also holds staff
meetings on a regular basis.

8. Balanced composition of Directors who are not management

The company’s Board of Directors consists of 11 people

Directors in management 3
Directors representing major shareholders 5
Independent Directors (Audit committee) 3

9. Combining or separating positions

The Chairman of the Board of Directors comes from the major share-
holder group which holds 27.24% of total shares.

Although the Chairman and the managing director are the same
person, work administration must have the approval of the board which
comprises representatives of various major shareholder groups and includes
the auditing committee which helps to re-examine and provide a counter-
balance
10.  Executives’ Remuneration

Total remuneration for the management of company from ranking
“Manager” up for the period of 1 year are as follows: Cash remuneration

- The Board of directors of 12 persons received meeting allow-
ances total 618,056.00 Baht

Directors receive only meeting allowance.

Salary has not been paid.

- Managers received 7,068,755.00 Baht which includes salary,
commission, bonus, car expense, social security expense, accident insur-
ance, provident fund.

Other remuneration - None -
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11.  Board of Directors meeting

The Board of Directors generally holds a meeting on a quarterly
basis and holds special additional sessions when necessary. For 2003,
there were 4 regular meetings and 5 special sessions with a clear
agenda set in advance. The company’s secretary is the person to
prepare invitations to meetings and related documents 7 days before
the meeting takes place. This is so that the Directors have time to
consider and study information. Each meeting takes about two and a
half hours. Last year, the Board of Directors held 4 regular meetings
and had 5 special sessions as follows :

seie n1sus:ua1s:Usni n1suUs:uS: LAY Sou
Name Regular Meeting Special Session Total
1. WEND ATNAG
4/4 5/5 9/9
Mr. Metha Trillit
2. a3 3%l A3aan
4/4 5/5 9/9
Dr. Viwat Trillit
3. e Ts WAWAY
! 4/4 5/5 9/9
Mr. Chaovuth Pojanalai
4. wg nd 0 25aned
! 2/4 5/5 7/9
Mr. Suvit Wesaratchawest
5. Dato Siew Ka Wei 3/4 5/5 8/9
6. Mr.Masayuki  Hashimoto 2/4 5/5 7/9
7. Mr.Michifumi  Watanabe 2/4 5/5 7/9
8. wg 338 Lo mning
! 3/4 5/5 8/9
Mr. Surachai  Choengwiwatkit
9. Wit AuNIATNA
4/4 5/5 9/9
Mr. Chaiwat  Chandarasrivongs
10. @%.3950 YSouun
4/4 5/5 9/9
Dr. Chongrak Prichanont
11, WELRATE [anauna
! 3/4 5/5 8/9
Mr. Lertchai Leelayonkul
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Minutes of the meetings recorded and endorsed by
directors, so that they can be checked by related parties.
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12.  Sub-committee

The company’s Board of Directors has appointed a sub-com-
mittee to help oversee the following operations of the company. The
auditing committee was set up on December 17, 1999.

1. Names of members of the Audit Committee are as follows :

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr.Lertchai  Leelayonkul
Member of the Audit Committee
Dr.Chongrak Prichanont
Member of the Audit Committee
Mr.Chaiwat Chandarasrivongs
Secretary to the Audit Committee
Mr.Visut Vanijcharoenkarn

2. The Audit Committee of the Company has the scope of
duties and responsibilities, and shall report to the company’s board
of directors as follows :

2.1 To review the sufficiency, credibility and objectivity of
the financial report

2.2To review the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
control systems and internal audit functions.

2.3 To review compliance with the Securities and Exchange
Acts, Regulations of the SET, and any other relevant laws.

2.4To consider and advise the appointment of the
external auditors including the audit fee.

2.5To consider compliance with all connected transaction
disclosures of the conflict of interests disclosure.

2.6To report the activities of the audit committee in the
company’s annual report, which must be signed by the chairman of
the audit committee.

2.7 To take care of any other matters assigned to it by
the board of directors.

3. Terms for holding office : 3 Years
13. Internal control and auditing system

The company places importance on efficient control at both
the management level and operational level. There is supervision to
ensure that company assets are used for to bring in benefit and
there is separation of duties for work executors, monitoring people
and those undertaking evaluation. This is to ensure that a balance is
created and there is appropriate check and control. In addition, there
is also internal control concerning finances, and the company has
set a system whereby a financial report is presented to administra-
tors in each responsible department.

In the past, the company had its own internal auditors. However
as of 2004, in order for the internal auditing group to be independent
and fully undertake auditing and counter-balancing, the company has
hired an auditing company that is separate from the company auditing
its financial statement, to undertake its internal auditing. This is to
increase confidence that the company’s main work and major financial
activities are being undertaken according to set guidelines and with
efficiency. This includes checking that laws and conditions related to the
company are adhered to. The internal auditing division must report their
findings directly to the audit committee.
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14. Board of Directors report

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
consolidated balance sheet of the company, and for financial
information appearing in the annual report. The said balance
sheet is prepared under an accounting standard certified throughout
Thailand, with an appropriate accounting balance that has been
practiced on a regular basis chosen, and prepared with utmost
consideration and estimation. Sufficient key financial information
is also provided in remarks included in the balance sheet.

The Board of Directors has seen to it that effective internal
control system is maintained, so that there is good reasonable
confidence that the recorded financial information is correct,
complete and sufficient enough to maintain assets and to be aware
of weak spots in order to prevent corrupt or dubious practices.

For this reason, the company’s Board of Directors has
appointed an Audit Committee which comprises Directors not
dealing in management and who are responsible for quality of
financial reports and internal control. The views of the Audit
Committee on these matters appears in the report by the Audit
Committee, which is shown in the annual report.

The Board of Directors views that the company’s overall
internal control system is at a satisfactory level and is able to
create good reasonable confidence in the consolidated balance
sheet for the company as at December 31, 2003.

15.  Investor Relations

The Board of Directors places importance on presenting
correct, complete, transparent and thorough information in financial
reports and in the presentation of general information, as well as
vital information concerning company assets. The various information
is disseminated via stock market channels and communications. The
company has not yet established an investor relations work unit, but
has assigned Mrs Parichart Manuthasna, the Office Manager, to
undertake contacts with institutional investors, shareholders and as
well as analysts and related government sectors. Investors can
contact for more information at Tel 0-2318-0360-9 ext 118 or e-mail
: pato2@cscoms.com

The Board of the company adheres to the Code of Best
Practices as exercised by the Board of listed companies strictly

following the guidelines set by the Stock Exchange.
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Personnel

Total Number of Employee as of 31 December 2003 is 170.

There has been no significant change of number of employ-
ees.

Total remuneration for all employees

Remuneration includes salary, bonus, commission, car allow-
ance, provident fund, social security welfare,

Insurance and social security welfare for 2003 is 47,209,927.92
baht.

Employees develop their efficiency with regular participation in

seminars.
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SHAREHOLDERS

mMsIUasuIUadia:weuunms oun Andiu ‘ounIineonunauwioRu
avici 31 suoAu 2543 - 31 suoAy 2546

Development of Major Shareholders

from 31 December 1900 - 31 December 2003

BowroRu usnd TWOUAU | Sowa: |  TWOUAU | Sowa: | DUOUAU Soga: | DWOUAU | Soga:
Shareholders Nationclity |Number of Share| % [Number of Share| % | Number of Share| % [Number of Share| %
ru 31/12/43 tu 31/12/44 tu 31/12/45 tu 31/12/46
As of 31/1/00 As of 31/1/01 As of 31/1/02 As of 31/1/03
1. ﬂéjm%aaﬁl/ ne 3,744,100 26.74 3,764,100 26.89 3,804,100 2717 3,814,100 27.24
Trillit Group Thai
2. Ancom Berhad LA 1,470,000 10.50 1,470,000 10.50 1,470,000 10.50 1,470,000 10.50
Ancom Berhad Malaysian
3. NN. Chemical Corp. njﬂqu 2,800,000 | 20.00 2,800,000 | 20.00 2,800,000 20.00 2,800,000 20.00
NN. Chemical Corp. Japanese
4. NENWAWIAY Tne 1,518,000 | 10.84 1,497,000 | 10.69 1,507,000 | 1076 1,557,000 | 11.12
Pojanalai Group Thai
5. ﬂéjun "Foned na 1,059,400 7.57 1,111,600 7.94 1,111,600 7.94 1,111,600 7.94
Wesaratchawest Group Thai
6. nauiBoiiaciAa Tne 889,000 | 635 885,700 | 6.33 885,700 | 6.33 850,700 | 6.08
Cheongwiwatkit Group Thai
7. §otunedu 1455500 | 10.40 | 2471600 | 17.65| 2421600 | 17.30 | 2396600 | 17.2
Others
3u/Total 14,000,000 |100.00 14,000,000 |100.00 14,000,000 |100.00 14,000,000 [100.00
nuﬁﬁ'ﬂn“ﬁwmé’a (8uu1n)/Paid up Capital (Million baht) | 140.00 140.00 140.00 140.00
nwaanzideu (wwn)/Registered Capital (Million baht) 140.00 140.00 140.00 140.00
3901 Par (Um)/Par (baht) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
KUNEIKC Note :

o o 4 o a , oo
1. YUAMATLIUNTINNITHIDHUIAIITING NT , UAT UAS Wiay
4 Ao o = IS+
2. Ancom Berhad favSsniiaanzidoulunaravanning lu
ﬂmwwmmﬁf'ﬂilixnaugiﬁﬂuwmﬂ6] 1y Usenavdae
2.1 ruadmIadnsney
- v
2.2 1A%a0 1MNTIH
2.3 FananiUSnm s uunauss i
24 o sm3unsng
2.5 M3YU NN
3.NN. Chemical Corp. (AR NAITTINAUIDS UHHNANYDS
Nissho Iwai Corporation uas Nichimen Corporation %a\mizmmjl]u
diafuelng 100% fa Global Chemical Holding Inc. lasdinuan
niiion 4,985 armen

1. Grouping by family name including spouse, sons and daughters,
and siblings
2. Ancom Berhad is a listed company on the Stocks market in
Malaysia with fully integrated business such as :
2.1 Agricultural chemical
2.2 industry chemical
2.3 Engineering Consultancy on Gas and Petrol
2.4 Real Estate
2.5 Sea Ttransportation
3. NN. Chemical Corporation, a Japanese shareholder. Chemical
department of Nissho Iwai Corp and Nichimen Corp has been merged to
from a new corporation named. NN chemical Corporation. Major shareholder
of 100% is Global Chemical Holding Inc. with registered capital of 4,985
million yen.
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MANAGEMENT

(1) laso $oMsvams Management Structure

IWuNDI- aoMsaovAnsyoousyYn wilaindoa rnssy 9na (UKsu)
Organization Chart of Pato Chemical Industry Company Limited

A:NSSUNISUSEN
I Board of Directors

AMUNSSUNISASID BU I
Audit Committee

nssunsWisnuogns
ACUIUST MSaan
President
Mr. Metha Trillit

NSSUN1SSaVWauENS
nS. 29U nSaan
Executive Vice President

Dr. Viwat Trillit
|
1 | 1
wdnamstiheusims (Snyms) gommslsoou udnnisihenisnain
fs. Dl msaam  u1wasmd andl S

UgasAuU angl sna

ACUGCYIA ACUEUIUS
Factory Manager

Administration Manager (Acting)

Marketing Manager
Dr. Viwat Trillit Mr. Warat Lapserisakul Mr. Chanwut Kooniyapantu
fusnuienisnain
ACU WS 1BUIIWLND
Marketing Advisor
Mr. Sumet Cheongwiwatkit
I —
Isamsiinetug @onnsingddena:wmuwanir
, HW‘_E“S_ ']?U'_uu ANINJUNNY Wanry
AioEUASID aunelu - ARUD NS IUBEIDSIUNS Research & -
Internal Audit Accounting Manager Development Manager
Mr. Visut Vanichcharoenkarn Mr. Kawinharn Polaharn
wonn1su1en1sIou dHan"siun
us.Toroul 8o AUS:IUNS 1RBVSSSY
B Finance Manager Area Sales Manager [~
Mr. Joseph Ng Mr. Rapin Theingthum
@danis “Uanvau
. APUUISBIA LYNAU

Office Manager
Mrs. Parichart Manuthasna
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SHAREHOLDERS’ STRUCTURE

n) NYUATAAR : A) Trillit Group
. B) Ancom Berhad

@) NN Chemical Corp. :

%) Ancom Berhad
C) Nissho Iwai Corp.
9) NANWAWIAE : D) Pojanalai Group
3) NgAL 1$uaafi : E) Wesaratchawest Group

9) ndudeliaiia  : F) Cheongwiwatkit Group

n:A) 0.54% n:A) 27.24%
2 : B) 2:B)  10.50%
n:0) A:C) 20.00%
9:D)  054% 9:D)  1112%
3 E) a:E)  7.94%
a:F)  0.27% a:F)  6.08%

1.35% 82.88%

1IN wamtﬂﬁqﬂ WMNTIN AN (NAITU)
nuaﬂ‘mﬁau 140 819U
Pato Chemical Industry Plc.
Registered Capital Baht 140 Million

4.93%

UTEN wan An WITEU Bud @3 ana

nmﬂmtﬁﬂu 108 & UL
Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.
Registered Capital Baht 108 Million

U5 mﬁmwﬁmm’qm HNITH INA

Asia Mineral Processing Co., Ltd.

n:A)  39.30% n:A) 3200%

1 : B) 2 : B) -

A :C) a:C) -

9:D)  1270% 4: D) 46.00%

a:E)  19.60% A:E) -

a:F)  1570% a:F -
87.30% 78.00%

U3EN inuding wiawiwasa © e (IHnenens vinew)
Kentex Properties Co., Ltd. (Office Space Rental)

a o | wwA K o X 99
HIENITILHINNY LU IWQHN, myenydsziunil, 1Hidaians
Connected transaction such as loan, bank guarantee,

office space rental
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(Special Additives)

The company is the importer, formulator, and distributor

of pesticide.

Major Types of Imports

1. Technical Grade (TG) : is a concentrated substance
with needs formulation in final product accordingto the specified
formulas.

2. Finished Product (FP) : is the product ready for use.
Most of the imported FP is in liquid and solid form in large size.
Therefore, repackaging is needed before distribution. About 80%
of the company’s imported products are TG for formulation at the
factory before distribution resulted in lower cost of raw materials
as compared with other competitors who import finished product
for repackaging. TG can be stored for longer period than FP and
can be formulated to the requirements which is more suitable for
the environment. Chemical pesticide in the market can be in many
forms e.g. liquid, powder, and granule for safety transporting in
moving and storing. In the production process. The are 2 main
ingredients in chemical pesticide; active and inert ingredients.
“Active Ingredients” are chemical substance called by its
chemical names for different uses of purposes. “Inert Ingredients”
are substance to combine with the active chemical to make it
in the forms suitable for different types of uses such as
solvents, carriers, surfactants, emulsifiers, or any other
substance which are added for special purpose called “Special
Additives”.
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REVENUE STRUCTURE

ddumsloe | %mstieru U 2544 U 2545 U 2546
UooUsSUYN auuin % auunn % auun %

yammsorhaiuds:na

NWAAAIT 1 PATO

1IINAAUNAS 12076 | 26.45 130.63 | 25.95 17151 | 31.08
19NAATYNY 267.35 | 58.55 29291 | 58.10 300.47 | 54.45
ﬁﬁﬁm%aﬁ 21.26 4.66 3017 6.00 33.20 6.02
1siAals 13.87 | 3.04 15.10 3.00 17.03 | 3.08
ug 33.31 7.30 35.01 6.95 2867 | 519
Tgasmstmhlulszine 456.55 [100.00| 50342 |[100.00|  550.88 | 99.82
yammsonLhachous:ne

ARSI 1 PATO

1INNAALNAY - - - - - -
REIRECRLntY - - - . " -
NsiadEe s - - - - - -
13mdals - - - - y -
819 : - - : 098 | 018
YA TINHEA9 eI - - 1 - 0.98 0.18
yarmmsorugiuds:nriia:cnous:ina

AR 1 PATO

SEUECIEEN 12076 | 26.46 130.63 | 25.95 17151 | 31.08
13O TENY 267.35 | 58.55 29251 | 58.10 300.47 | 54.45
sAmEe T 2126 | 4.66 3017 | 6.00 3320 | 6.02
1siaals 13.87 | 3.04 1510 | 3.00 17.03 | 3.08
Bug 33.31 7.30 35.01 6.95 2965 | 5.37
Tugamsmhelulsng

wazAglTEINe 456.27 [100.00 503.42 [100.00 551.86  [100.00
ANTUAULAZ T80 21.30 4.67 19.00 377 23.11 419
yafn e 13 43525 |97.87| 48442 | 9828 52875 |99.07
LR TERNACUIG LR RS 0.33 0.07 0.27 0.05 - -
eldaug 9.16 2.06 823 | 167 494 | 093
aldam 44474  [100.00 492.92  [100.00 533.69 [100.00
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Operated by | Percentage 2001 2002 2003
of Shares | MilBaht | % | MilBoht | % | MilBaht | %

Local Sales by Products
Product Line 1 PATO
Insecticide 120.76 26.45 130.63 25.95 171.51
Herbicide 267.35 | 58.55 292.91 58.10 300.47
Fungicide 21.26 4.66 30.17 6.00 33.20
Acaricide 13.87 3.04 15.10 3.00 17.03
Other 33.31 7.30 35.01 6.95 28.67
Total Local Sales 456.55 [100.00 503.42 [100.00 550.88
Export Sales by Products
Product Line 1 PATO
Insecticide -
Herbicide -
Fungicide -
Acaricide -
Other - 0.98 0.18
Total Export Sales - - 0.98 0.18
Local & Export Sales
Product Line 1 PATO
Insecticide 120.76 26.46 130.63 25.95 171.51 31.08
Herbicide 267.35 | 58.55 292.51 58.10 300.47 | 54.45
Fungicide 21.26 4.66 30.17 6.00 33.20 6.02
Acaricide 13.87 3.04 15.10 3.00 17.03 3.08
Other 33.31 7.30 35.01 6.95 29.65 5.37
Total Local & Export Sales 456.27 [100.00 503.42 [100.00 551.86 [100.00
Less Returned & Discount 21.30 4.67 19.00 3.77 23.11 419
Net Sales 43525 | 97.87 484.42 98.28 528.75 99.07
Contractor 0.33 0.07 0.27 0.05
Other Income 9.16 2.06 8.23 1.67 4.94 0.93
Total Revenue 44474 1100.00 492.92 [100.00 533.69 [100.00
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TREND OF INDUSTRY AND COMPETITIVENESS
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Specialty Commodity AU
Products (%) Products (%4ia) (3i0)
Technical Grade 12 59 71
Finished Products 6 21 27
I 18 80 98
yjaﬂ'ﬁw (Wuuh) 206,981 343,125 505,106

Pato Chemical Industry Public Company Limited

The Agrochemical Industry has played a major role in
protecting and improving the quality of Thailand’s produce
since the year 1957 when there was only a few multinational
agrochemical companies. These firms had introduced and
distributed technical know-how. Soon after, there are many
more companies in this business established in Thailand to
serve the increasing demand of agriculturists.

In general, there are 2 major types of chemical
pesticide (from business aspect)

1. Specialty product : this is proprietary product
belonging to a particular company which has the patent right
to produce and distribute it. It may also refer to a product that
is exclusively imported by a national distributor/ formulator.
Such product has to go through phase-registration process
required by the Ministry of Agriculture. Such process usually
involves the submission and approval of complete toxicology
data experimental trials which can take up to 3-5 year to
complete. Companies with such specialty products can
usually set their prices higher than normal due to their
monopoly-like advantage.

2. Commodity product : this is generic product
commonly sold and distributed by many companies.
Commodity product can be imported from many manufacturers
around the world. It is usually imported in the form of technical
grade and then formulated into finished products. Such product
is fairly simple to register, requiring only authorization certificate
from the manufacturer. Since there is no significant difference in
the quality and price, brand loyalty and image are very

important factors for commodity products.

Products by types

Specialty Commodity Total

Products (ltem) Products (ltem) (tem)

Technical Grade 12 59 71
Finished Products 6 21 27
Total 18 80 98
Total Value (Thousand Baht) 206,981 343,125 505,106
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0 'aums “oBosanaululsinAia:cnous:Inat 2543-2546
Local and Import Purchasing Ratio of 2000-2003
Local Purchasing Ratio of 2000-2003

. D SV | o
a1y wamqﬂﬂuﬂi:mﬁ (AUE : WUUN)

Value of Purchasing Ratio (Unit : Thousand Baht)

Usianndandu / Raw Material  [2543/2000| % (2544/2001| % [2545/2002| % |2546/2003| %
1. Technical Grade 80,031 23.58 84,780 26.01 66,995 19.16 85,592 22.80
2. Solvent 11,948 3.52 12,374 3.80 10,866 3.1 16,638 4.43
3. Emulsifiers 3,621 1.06 12,506 3.84 7,095 2.03 9,294 2.48
4. Auxiliary 6,601 1.95 6,835 210 7,813 2.23 6,777 1.81
5. Others 47,414 13.97 3,380 1.03 3,532 1.01 3,927 1.05
i’mﬁaﬂl’lﬂ’]i %%a‘a”mq@ﬁlum:mﬁ 149,615 44.08 119,875 36.78 96,301 27.54 122,228 32.57
Total Amount

Import Purchasing Ratio of 2000-2003

Ha@hnn%%ai’mqﬁm’m@hqﬂszm@l (WI28 : WHLIN)

Value of Purchasing Ratio (Unit : Thousand Baht)

Usianndandu / Raw Material  [2543/2000| % (2544/2001| % [2545/2002| % |2546/2003| %
1. Technical Grade 182,844 53.87| 201,598 61.86| 244,082 69.80| 250,864 66.83
2. Solvent 278 0.08 179 0.05 -
3. Emulsifiers 6,123 1.81 3,888 1.19 9,135 2.61 2,269 0.60
4. Auxiliary
5. Others 539 0.16 557 0.17
e sifefagiudaissing| 189,784 | 5592| 206,043 | 63.22| 253396 | 7246| 253,133 | 67.43
Total Amount

Local and Import Purchasing Ratio of 2000-2003

Qaﬂ'wmi%%a’mqaﬂuﬂizmmmz@iwﬂmwﬁ (¥UI8 T WHLN)

Value of Purchasing Ratio (Unit : Thousand Baht)

Usianndandu / Raw Material  [2543/2000| % (2544/2001| % [2545/2002| % |(2546/2003| %
1. Technical Grade 262,875 77.45| 286,378 87.87| 311,077 88.96| 336,456 89.63
2. Solvent 12,226 3.60 12,374 3.80 11,045 3.16 16,638 4.43
3. Emulsifiers 9,744 2.87 16,394 5.03 16,230 4.64 11,563 3.08
4. Auxiliary 6,601 1.95 6,835 2.10 7,813 2.23 6,777 1.81
5. Others 47,953 1413 3,937 1.20 3,532 1.01 3,927 1.05
swyasms “sifefagaulutszine | 339,309 (100.00| 325918 [100.00| 349,697 [100.00| 375361  [100.00

LazAN9l SN

Total Amount
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Records on Environmental Misconduct

None

Marketing

Market strategy is as follows

The company’s competitive advantages are

1. Standard quality of product which is well accepted
by the customers for more than 20 years

2. Strategy to specify products for sale by each dealer
1 Aside from its financial status, the company will limit the
products to be distributed by each dealer to prevent price
cutting of the company’s products among its dealers in the
same area.

3. Production cost advantage as the company will
produce from technical grade chemical.

4.  Good relationship with dealers

5. Fast delivery : within the 200 kilometer radius the
company will provide delivery. Dealers outside the radius, the
company may deliver depending on order amount. Agrochemical
industry pay much importance on prompt delivery. In each
particular season, the company will have prompt delivery to
meet the demand in time. For example, production and
distribution of herbicide should be able to meet the demand
during rainy season while insecticide should be able to be
delivered promptly during the insects outbreak season.

6. Pato distributes totaling 80 various products,
consequently the company will be able to share more market
in more planting area for various crops such as rice, fruit,
vegetable, para rubber, palm oil and many others. This will
reduce risk from natural disaster. Performance of the

company will then be as we has expected for.

Types of Customers and its Relationships

In the pesticide industry, there are 2 main markets;
general customers market (Free market) which is bigger, and
markets for distributors and market for local repackers which
is less important respectively. The company emphasizes in
customers in rural area. By thorough selection of dealer for
each particular area will sell different products to avoid

competition. In doing so, the company will be able to sell
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variety of products and to reduce the risk of distributor's
business. However, the company still needs to check its
relationship with the customers to avoid any possible
problems. The company aims to develop new products and
variety, and, at the same time, aims to distribute the
information on proper and efficient use of all pesticides to

customers.

Criteria for selection of dedler for each area :

1. Financial status

2. Sales network and its coverage

3. No conflict agreement to sell the same product of
different producers

4. Strong intention to commit to the company’s

products

asWI aoMsNsS:EMSTIKUNaUoLUSUN Wilaindea rNssU dna (UKisu)

Tuoanauov aa rnssuindvaraswis TuU 2545-2546
Product Distribution of Pato Chemical Industry Plc in 2002-2003

2545/2002 2546/2003
WURn/Area PUOUgNA JaFmsonLhe PWUOUGNAN yammsokue
Number of Customers Total Sale Number of Customer Total Sale
(sh9) (Wuun)/Thousand Baht (s19) (Wuun)/Thousand Baht

1. DISTRIBUTORS 74 112,320 69 95,143

2. LOCAL REPACKERS 4 57,880 5 67,154

3. FREE MARKET 387 332,210 398 387,796

374/Total 465 502,410 472 550,093
Ulgunesim Pricing Policy
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In general, the company will set the price at the level,
which is slightly higher than average price of its local
competitors and slightly lower than average price of the
international market, of the same product. Other factors for
the price consideration are:

1. If the product already exists in the market, the
company will set its price within that product market price
range.

2. If the product does not yet exist in the market, the
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company will conduct research on quality; the amount used
and instruction for use to determine the efficacy of its product
to determine the price in comparison with the pesticide

farmers are currently using.

Competitiveness
There are 2 major types of chemical pesticide companies:

1. International Companies. These companies have their
own products or buy few products from other companies. Most
of them, either, imports finished products for repackaging by
local repackers, or import technical grades for resell to local
companies eg, Syngenta Crop Protection Co., Ltd., Dow Agro
Science Co., Ltd., Byer Crop Zone Co., Ltd., Monsanto Thailand
Co.,Ltd., Dupont (Thailand) Co., Ltd., Fez Agro Co., Ltd.

2. Local Companies. There are 4 groups as follows :

21 Formulators and distributors : These companies
have their own factory for formulating and reprocessing, and
their own sales and promotion team. Most of them imports
technical grade products. eg, Pato Chemcial Industry Plc., Ladda
Co., Ltd., Intercrop Co., Ltd. TJC Co., Ltd., P. Chemical Tech
Co., Ltd., Tepwatana Co., Ltd., Yip In Soy & Jacks Co., Ltd.,
Sahaikaset Co., Ltd.

2.2 Formulators : There companies have their own
factory for toll formulating and reprocessing, but do not have
their own sales and promotion team eg, Sharp Farmulator Co.,
Ltd., S&P Formulator Co., Ltd., Tep Siam Co., Ltd., Ag Poly
Pack Co., Ltd.,, MC Agro Co., Ltd. and Alfa Agro Co., Ltd.

2.3 Repackers : These companies have their own
packaging facilities. They do not formulate or reprocess
products.eg, Hitech Group Co., Ltd. and Small Pack Co., Ltd.

2.4 Distributors : These companies only have their
own sales and promotion team eg,Thai Central Chemical Co.,
Ltd., Pitsulin Co., Ltd., Agritech Co., Ltd., Sotus Intornational
Co., Ltd., Chemofly Co., Ltd., Kasetland Co., Ltd., M.T.K. Co.,

Ltd., Suprederm International Co., Ltd.

The company has policy to gain more market share
from the multinational or local companies in order to strengthen

its competitiveness as follows :
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1. As compared with other formulators, the company’s
factory in Bangpoo Industrial Estate is well equipped with
modern machinery for higher capacity. Moreover, the company
has sufficient trucks for quick delivery to serve customers
better.

2. As compared with repackers and distributors, the
company’s advantages are shown below :

21 Lower costs of production from the use of
technical grade

2.2 Extensive marketing team with experience and
expertise

2.3 Wider coverage of area all over the country

2.4 More product variety of various agrochemical
types and uses

3. As compared with multi-national companies, the
company’s advantages over these companies are the same
as those over the repackers and distributors. Moreover, the
company has strategy to gain market share by :

3.1 Adding more products of comparable quality to
those of the multi-national companies. With lower costs of
production. It is expected that the company will be able to
achieve more market share, initially, by 5-10% of total sales
of such product, and will increase gradually.

3.2 Penetrating into new area i.e. area in the
Northeast region, or in developing area of the country which
is accounted for 60% of total area of Thailand. The company
will send promotion team to the area to introduce the proper
the quality of its produce to serve the demand in the market.
By this way, farmers will also earn higher income.

To fulfill the special needs of the agricultural sector, the
agricultural chemical industry must supply a wide range of
products. These can be divided into four main categories :
Herbicides, Insecticides, Fungicides, Acaricides & Hormones.
Diversification, therefore, is vital to the success and growth of

the agricultural chemical industry.
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RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

1. Pato Chemical Industry Ple.
Kentex Properties Co., Lid.
Connected Transactions :
Pato rents office space in Pato Building, which belongs to

Kentex Properties Co., Ltd.

Pato Chemical Industry Plc. have rented the office space
in the Pato building for office use with detail as follows ;
Location

Pato Building, 3388 New Petchburi Road Bangkapi,
Huay Kwang, Bangkok 10310
Building ownership
Kentex Properties Co., Ltd. (related company)
Material content of the rent contract

Pato Chemical Industry Plc. has rent the area on the first
floor of the building with usable space of 230 sq.meters. Monthly
rental fee is baht 30,000. The contract begins from 1 June 1981
to 31 May 2021. Rental fee will be adjustable every 2 years with
the maximum adjustment not exceeding 25% of the prevailing

rental rate.

Rent contracts indicate that landlord will be responsible for
the household and property taxes based on the actual rental fee
received. Any other tax and duty including utilities expenses will

be responsible by the renter only.

Presently, Pato has been using the space on the first and
second floor totaling 334 square meters, and meeting room on
the third floor of about 40 square meters. The rental fee has not
yet been adjusted according to space utilized or adjusted the

rental fee as allowed by contract.
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Bank Guarantee

Pato Chemical Industry Public Co., Ltd. provide bank
guarantee to related company, Acron Plastic Industry
Co., Ltd. or presently called Plastic Precision Industry

Co., Ltd. as follows:

Bo Us:1nnngiu 201U gOanNDAND nanus:nu
(@wuun)  |ru sun 31 s.A. 2546
Bank Type of Loan | Credit Loan Balance as at Collateral
(Million Baht) | December 31, 2003
PUIAIINTUNN 1A () LG - 7.98 uit wilawadlga mnasw
"winawlng AR (HT)
Bangkok Bank Plc. Pato Chemical Ind. Plc.
(Head Office)
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Loan to Related Company

Annual General meeting of sharcholders No.1/2001 on the
23" Aril 2001 passed a resolution to provide 10 million baht loan
facility to Plastic Precision Industry Co.,Ltd. so as to liquidate
cash flow of the company. Interest rate applied range from
2-7.5% per year. The loan as of December 31, 2003 was 3.06
million baht. The loan was indicated under note No.6 of the 2003
year-end financial statement of the company as “non-current

assets”.
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Report of the Audit Commitee

Report Issued by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Pato Chemical Industry Public
Company Limited was appointed by the board of directors of
the company on December 17, 1999. It is composed of 3
independent directors and company’s accounting manager who
serves as secretary to the committee.

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
is to review the financial statements to be conformed with
the generally accepted accounting principles, review the
effectiveness and adequacy of internal control system, review
the company’s activity to abide by the rules and laws
concerned, give recommendation to the Board of Directors to
propose an auditor to the shareholders’ meeting for
appointment, and to execute other duties as assigned by the
Board of Directors.

During 2003, the Audit Committee convened 4
meetings with the external auditor to review compliance with
accounting and control. It also reviewed quarterly and annual
financial statements prior to its publication.

The Audit Committee has presented its recommendation
to the Board of Directors to nominate the company’s auditor for

approval by shareholders’ meeting.

(Mr.Lerthai Leelaryonkul)
Chairman of Audit Committee

28 February 2004
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1. Natural phenomena risk, such ans soil and weather
condition, which vary from year to year, not only directly effect
agricultural activities, but also have a huge impact on the sales of
insecticides, Drought is a major hindrance of the cultivation of high
quality crops, and it reduces the volume of produce considerably,
as well as the demand for insecticides. Conversely, when there
has been major crop damage, the demand for insecticides could
increase to such an estent that manufacturers are unable to meet
the increased demand.

In recognition of such risks, therefore, PATO Chemical
Industry Plc. has gone to great lengths to research and develop new
products, in an effort to minimize the variations in the demand for
insecticides caused by such natural crises. For example, in the case
of drought, the use of liquid weed killers, instead of pills, goes a long
way in reducing the impact on PATO Chemical Industry’s sales, In
addition, the company’s new range of insecticides, designed for use
with a wide range of crops, such as rice, field crops, orchards, para
rubber and oil palm, helps minimize the effect of such natural crises
on these crops.

2. Marketing and production risk has hardly had any
impact at all on this company. lts extensive nationwide network
of agents means that this risk is negligible. Furthermore, its
distribution staregy, which enables each distribtor to sell only one
product range to avoid competition among distributors, has proved
most successful, But it is the company’s reputation, amongst
farmers, for manufacturing products which are both reliable and
of a high quality that has contributed most to the company’s
success. The fact that its product prices are considerably lower
than those of imported products also helps keep the company on
solid ground.

3. Technology risk, as manufacturing processes use only
a very limited amount of advanced technology. In the absence of
any technological advantages, therefor, expertise and specialized
production techniques are empasized, to give PATO Chemical
Industry the edge over its competitors. Whatever the processes,
whether import, research and development, production or distribution,
it has to be authorized by the Agricultural Toxic Substances Division
as well as any other relevant government offices, to ensure that all
products meet required specifications, and are safe. They must mot
have any adverse effects on the environment either. It is, therefore,
fairly obvious that running such a business requires a great deal of

time and effort.
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4. Credit risk, the company is exposed to credit risk rimarily
with respect to trade and notes accounts receivable. The company’s
prudent credit policy and its diversified customers. The maximum
credit risk exposure is equal to the book value of accounts recivable
in the balance sheet. To minimize the risk of accumulating bad
debts, PATO Chemical Industry has implemented a number of mea-
sures, including:

41  Control of credit balance

4.2  Strict consideration when opening new market

4.3  Shortening of payment period

4.4  Emphasis on crops with high potential and price,
eg. rice

45 Reduction of granting credit to high-risk crops,
eg. sugar cane

4.6  More detailed market studies by marketing
personnel

5. Foreign currency risk relates from import activities
of the company. The company primarily utilizes some forward
exchange contracts for imported products.

6. Risk factors concerning the announcerment banning
the import of toxic substances which come under watching list of
chemical to be used with caution in accordance with guidelines
by the Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives for effective
control and use of agrochemicals for the safety of consumers.
The company has conducted research and analysis to find a
new product to replace the previous product that has since been
declared dangerous and banned from import. The new researched
products to be imported will not leave toxic residue and will be

safe to farmers, the environment as well as consumers.

Othe Factors affected investment decision
1. Lawsuit

One December 9, 2003 the Company was sued as an alleged
guarantor of the former subsidiary Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.
(PPIC) for the outstanding debt plus interest of 25.82 milion baht.
The company has denied the allegation and hired a professional law
firm for defense due to the fact that the proposed guarantee for
PPIC failed to meet the approval at the Annual General Shareholders’
Meeting held on April 29, 2002. Since the outcome of this lawsuit
cannot be ascertained at present, the Company is not able to set
any loss provision for this case in the financial statement.
2. Policy on Dividend Payment

Pato Chemical Industry Plc. expects to pay dividend to share-

holders not less than 40% of net profit.
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In the consolidated financial statement of Pato Chemical
Industry Public Co., Ltd., net profit (loss) totaled 7.85, 29.81 and
42.86 million baht in 2001 - 2003 respectively. These figures
represent an increase and reduction of (54.75), 279.95 and 43.77
respectively.

These changes are attributed to the continued economic
slump, leading to reduced liquidity in the business system and a
reduction in consumers’ purchasing power. Although financial
institutions reduced the interest rate in a bid to stimulate investment,
this was not successful.

As a result of a bid to control the effect of pesticides on
the environment, the Government enforced laws prohibiting the
import and sale of certain products, causing the company’s total
sales to fall. It was necessary for the company to urgently
develop new products to replace these prohibited products. The
period was also marked by competition from rivals with regard to
quality and price. Price was used as the basis for formulating
competitive strategy. There were also market expenses and
increased costs for developing new products.

Agricultural produce prices fell from 2000 to 2002 as a
result of floods from heavy rain in the South and the Northeast
during second and third quarter which caused great damage to
farm produce. As a result, farmers had extremely less purchasing
power. At the same time, there were fluctuating effects from
foreign exchange rates and a weakened baht, causing prices for
imported raw materials to rise. Oil prices tend to increase and
thus affected our cost. Consequently, performance of the
company during the past 3 year were as follows :

Sales revenue during 2001 - 2003 was 435.58, 484.69 and
528.76 million baht respectively, representing increases (reductions)
of (14.34%), 11.28% and 9.09% respectively.

Total revenue during 2001 - 2003 was 44474, 492.92, and
535.39 million baht, representing increases (reductions) of
(14.91%),10.83%, and 8.61% respectively.

Sales costs in 2001 - 2003 were 371.49, 407.12 and 428.57
million baht, representing increases (reductions) of (16.83%), 9.59%,
and 5.27% respectively.

In 2001, the economic situation was still a continuing problem,

causing a slump in the market and reduced sales. Agricultural prices

Annual Report 2003 | swwowus:=310 2546



o

o w

a a ~ ) PV Ay 9 B
@q@m'ﬂmmmﬁmam\i @]’Jﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ@ﬂﬂ‘] ﬂvlmﬂanmwmmam:m

FOHANTIANTUIUIDILSEN YlRRaNIe LN IwaannIzezIa 3 1
Unngasit

eldannisne Tull 2544- 2546 S0 435.58, 484.69 waz
52876 auun lasiAsundasiadu (aaas) Andulesa: (14.34),
11.28 ua2 9.09 AINAIAY

el lull 2544 - 2546 Suau 44474, 492.92 uas 535.39
v d AI &J a Vv
fuun laswAsuudaaintu (aaae) Aadulesaz (14.91), 10.83
LAz 8.61 @INa1AY

(;]IW/(!W?J']H Iu‘ﬂ 2544 - 2546 414 371 49, 407.12 way 428.57
guun laslAsuutaaiingy (anas) Aaidudesas (16.83), 9.59 uaz
5.27 @Na1AL

1 2544 amzmswsiadaduilymeaiitas Geduanszmusilinng
ARATULIT HANITINAUILAARY ﬁmwawﬁmmqmsmwﬂﬁ:a:ﬁﬁfn
Snnemuiagnnatlugaenandd fl#mssznavesunasdagianas

a v o oA v < | o & o
Twsazdeniuwirienauduiiymivgueanuans G swald 13
o @ o o a [~ a o 1 U al . A
mMaaunasdngiiiadle dsaniminganas 0.34 dunlansu win
Sowaz 31.41 Waisunull 2543 wagananviue 13Maairnssie

. 4 Aoy v AT w v ;
e Hpaasriigiivnan 0.38 dwdlansn wiadaway 10.37 o
~ o oaA v Av 2 My o ¢ A9y ¥ @ ¢
WeuAudiua uwmaﬂmﬂmﬂaﬂqml,walw AARRRINY DIUNTTH
Tagngnaniiazas 3dsaannisaniig 803 n13ana967 o lag
sJa@ﬁwmumﬁmmﬂaﬂamﬁué’mwﬁm\m:hm@ﬁm’mﬁumﬁmmha
mnmiﬁﬁﬁ’m%’uﬂmm@waﬂﬁmsﬁua:miaaﬂNamﬁ’mmmiq"mm@
Tuamifg T uusEn lAn13059139AN1IN19FIUNITHEARE 195
U3z nEnmw ﬁﬂﬁé}’unul,wmul,l,aﬂ #enndnanasiasas 11.80
muimsdam iagavannunaslnd lfneriagavdumliuanas
cque  eq Lo X v

?Nm‘lmam’lmvlimuw”wumﬂ?ﬂ 2543 3asaz 20.97

“ a2 oaX v -

U 2545 amzewgnasuaan nnulounsud luifywiaswsia
mnvghoeeizea laems b wunsdiiunuzesgsfiazweidn

=3 4! o 4”' a (% € a v 1 4'
BAZUIIANAIIHAZTINDNIATIN I AIKAAS T “udn umile
4! I a U U Y > > [ 1 a
Foudu udmedunanEnTESUMS T wwnnmeizuaduagied
= t4 A @ a lva o a & oa

menizumwmwwammmﬂwmmmmwmvluw@mn dnneded

annagludaslassn # 3 waz 4 Sznnalddudumsutlafiymiie

2
¥ <

Jupgadnfiwazlinig T wwwaé’wunnmmmngﬂl,l,uu LUUNT

JI2AUTIATNTHAN N TINEAT mi‘ﬁwmﬁameﬁmmﬁﬂﬁuﬁ ﬂil

waz 1medmAadngiy Sz vAsiimingnuneIaiauaznIe

'
o al

e snsin e as

v
v a o/ 6

ﬁuffiﬁLﬁﬂulﬂmﬂﬁa:maamwu,a:wmmmuawammmﬁﬁqmmwvlsi

° o

wnruldlkanu Agiuamnnsakin

|3 u/

o A o v a oo M v
Idnnagu iiesadss seiaclindadmiadgmnnldlfanasgu

wnalyanaaia

were not so good and there were floods during the middle of the
year, which reduced the spread of harmful insects. Meanwhile, weeds
became a major problem for farmers instead. Thus, sales of pellet
insecticides dropped by 0.34 million kg, or 31.41%, compared to
year 2000. However, sales of granule herbicides rose by 0.38 million
kg or 10.37% compared to last year. The company thus adjusted its
strategy in line with the situation, by trying to maintain distribution
volume, with the least rate of reduction possible. The distribution
volume reduced at a faster rate than total sales value. This was
because the company made price adjustments for certain products
and launched new products onto the market. At the same time, the
company employed efficient management for production. This led
labor and production costs to drop by 11.80%. New raw material
sources were also procured, setting raw material prices on a
downward trend. This made initial profit rates up by 20.97% from
year 2000.

In 2002, the economic situation began to improve. Thanks
to the Government’s policy to solve economic problems at the
grassroots, by supporting SME operations and through the
Government's One Tambon, One Product project. A segment of
the product - agricultural products - received good government
support. However, agricultural prices were still not so good and
there were also flood problems during the 3rd and 4" quarters.
The Government fully dealt with the problems and gave all forms
of agricultural support, such as guaranteeing agricultural prices,
giving assistance in the form of seeds, fertilizer and chemicals.
With regard to the latter, government and private sector units
gave importance to the quality of products used by farmers.
Thus, there was a policy to check and curtail products not of
standard quality, so that these inferior products would no longer
be on the market.

The above factors led to a rise in the outbreak of harmful
plant insects, presenting a major problem for farmers engaging in
cultivation after the floods. It led to a 8.61% rise in the sales volume
of insecticides compared to 2001, of which granule insecticides sales
volume rose by 221 tons or 29.85%, compared to 2001.

Sales of herbicides also rose by 2.62%, compared to 2001.
This comprised an increase in liquid herbicide of 155,000 liters or
11.60%, and a rise of 159 tons or 34.91% for powder herbicide,
while sales of granule herbicide reduced slightly. These figures are
respectively in comparison to the sale of liquid, powder and granule
herbicide in 2001.

m Annual Report 2003 | sawowus:z370 2546



vy v o9y o a X ¢
mn‘ﬂaaﬂ°1m@1umsl,‘ﬂmazmﬁzmmmﬁmgﬁmwwu 6?f\'i

- . 4 e oA . e
Lﬂuﬁzywﬂwzyma\aLmsrmmwmnmww:ﬂgﬂm\mnm@qmnnﬂ 619
L ey . . o A .
TR b nmfmLtuaﬁﬁmgﬁmﬁﬂaﬂnwa’mu’mmeummmmu
wienamesasas 8.61 wawisuiul 2544 lagusznaudae
MIARNIUVBIIWIU 13TIauNaTialawiL 221 du nIaSesas
29.85 iawfisuiuswmuIvsneuas 15ManLNasinRauadtl 2544
. o S e . A
MW 1IMAAT TN UA N DANITINHUIL RN AU DY
MNumIhsnrgSasas 2.62 Waweuiull 2544 lagisznay
v 2oy . o o PR, . o a
MEMTANTUVRY 1IMAa TN rRasTY 155,000 aas ¥I8

Sagas 11.60 wasatianaiiy 159 ¢ winfosas 34.91 Tuume

D

a =

fafiafaanandnies Wafisuiusmusmsiiguss 13iia

Symiionh, wouazfialull 2544 amady
nmtinduesseansmieg vlfnelgannsme

Windudasa: 11.28 Wlaifisusull 2544 I@ﬁu%ﬁ’ﬂvléfﬂ%'unaﬂ;n%

v

NIN1INAIALNDLE BaAdadny A unITmanTivuSENidaan

v
=<

eraasmnriialrinasriavinReaauANTy  iady

u Ay eau 4 X 4
AeuaNdNUTTN RN IHEaENNIY ABUTIUUTINLRS
U dl [ a (% €d‘ M v ]
dnaieaiuguninsassdadunnldldunasguld wunsn
e i luviasnane

Tuamifentiu uSEnldmruaulouianisusrisdaninig

fumandaatedaz ninw vilddunuussnuuazl Foniande

v
o o v a |

anasiasay 2.32 immwmmqﬂumnLmaﬂmiﬁﬂﬁmmd”mqau
indganadiosas 7.19 dunumandauasdununaiinauiosss 3.44
waz 9.59 Waweunul 2544 lagdas UM IANTRTD AU
- 9 S o 4oy Y
mInaaLazfiununeiosnd WM TRNIUTsEaa T Fan
T o ¥ o e & ey
mMymedawiniudesa: 11.28 asiuanifadenldnansi il
T A sy v
USnddnsmlstudulosas 16 winauanl 2544 Sowaz 877
11 2546 nmaziewgialasswlduead oiu wiadmeuaa
TumelulsznaddnnsenadiSesas 5.61 laalu uaeens
- o X,
HAATIMTINEAT D1 TUAZUL TgLNEATYENad NN IuTaEaE 4.39
¢ & o o a a &
nofidunamnanifadosegludunisndafidesiwe lasaniz
ulsnnggaeiguadlénig o wuaenisinsasedadan Ll
MM lafiymnazanuiismisinsansnaonisiiagnndy
1T B %um\iﬁmﬂﬁﬁu&lﬁuﬁmwmnnﬁamiﬁwummmw
| a a a [ a = o | o a o
28197152 NS wluduniInae smazmvl,ﬂmmiwwm AN
wdagdnanisinsasfiazh iy nsudeduluaaialan iunis
v @ PN X A o ea @ '
Ty siu w‘[m@mwmmuawmNammmw wmmwwmvlﬂm
[ a U 1
M3 U 9aan
Nnifasednediu ylknansneasiiinacdu 1w NenIe
wwmmﬂigﬂ“uﬁwmwmﬁfuﬁmiwamﬁmmﬂé’aLﬂuﬁuﬁaﬂaz 464

WAz 4.66 LHBIANNAKAANINMINEATATIANGY tuumeAinig

Due to the increase in total sales, income from sales rose by
11.28% compared to 2001, with the company adjusting its marketing
strategy in line with the situation and also introducing many new
products, leading to a rise in total sales. Another outside factor
helping to boost sales was suppression and strict measures against
substandard products on the market.

At the same time, the company set an efficient administrative
management policy for production. This lead to a 2.32% decrease in
labor costs and other production costs. Raw materials were also
procured from new sources, leading to an average 7.19% decrease
in raw material prices. Production and selling costs rose by 3.44%
and 9.59% compared to 2001. However, production and selling costs
rose at a lower ratio than the increase in total sales income which
rose by 11.28%. Therefore, these factors led to a 16% initial profit
rate for the company, representing a rise of 8.77% from 2001.

In 2003, The overall economy expanded. Gross Domestic
Product expanded by 5.61 %, with expansion in agricultural
production, food production and agricultural processed goods
rising at a rate of 4.39%. This was the result of various favorable
production factors, particularly government policy fully supporting
the agricultural sector, such as solving farm problems and
providing assistance to farmers after flooding, and provision of
financial support for farmers to develop quality production
efficiency. This would inevitably lead to development in processing
agricultural goods and to competing on the world market. An
example is support for the One Tambon, One Product project that
has the potential for developing export products.

The above factors led to an expansion of 4.64% and
4.66% respectively for plants and processed agricultural goods.
Because of higher agricultural prices, and at the same time
government measures and policy to increase the value of
agricultural produce which also supported expansion in the
output of agricultural processing sector, farmers were able to
enjoy a better financial position and higher purchasing power.

Total sales rose by 44.06 million baht or 9.9% compared to
the year 2002. This is due to the spread of plant pests, a major
problem for farmers beginning their planting after the floods. This
led to an increase of 62.63% in the sales of pesticides compared
to 2002, with a 97.06% rise seen in the sale of granule pesticide
and 78.25% rise in the sale of powder pesticide compared to
2002. This led to initial total sales to rise by 36.68 million baht or
an increase of 28.09%. At the same time, total sales of herbicides

rose by 0.92% compared to 2002. Under this increase, liquid
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herbicide increased by 21.27%, while granule and powder herbicide
fell by 5.55% and 7.37% respectively compared to 2002. This caused
initial total sales to rise by 7.95 million baht or 2.72%. Sales of liquid
fungicide rose by 60.18%, ca using initial sales to rise by 7.51 million
baht, representing an increase of 62.46%. However at the same
time, there was a slight fall in total sales and retailing of powder
fungicide.

Thus, the rise in total sales and rise in earnings from the
increase in sales, was due to the outbreak of plant pests and the
beginning of planting following the floods, which led to increased
use of pesticides. The company devised a marketing strategy in
accordance with the prevailing situation. In addition, the company
also introduced many new products and product types to suit
market demand during the time. Another outside factor helping to
increase sales is the suppression and strict supervision by both
government and private sectors over sub-standard products. This
prevented sub-standard products from being sold on the market.

Production factors had an effect on operations. The company
set a policy for efficient management of production by searching for
sources of quality and lower cost raw materials. Raw material prices
on average decreased by about 8.25%, leading production costs and
sales costs to rise by 7.78% and 5.27% respectively compared to
2002. The rate of increase for production and sales costs was
smaller than the rate of increase for total sales income which amounted
to 9.09%. Production costs in utilization of raw materials rose by
7.76%, labor costs rose by 14.27% and other costs rose by 1.68%.
This resulted from higher market demand, which in turn raised
production output and retail, giving the company initial profits of
18.95%, representing a rise of 18.44% from 2002.

Table showing rate of increases (reduction) during 2001 - 2003

PATO
Year Sales Revenue Consolidated revenue Cost of Sale
2001 (14.34) (14.91) (16.83)
2002 11.28 10.83 9.59
2003 9.09 8.61 5.27

Sales and services expenses during 2001 - 2003 totaled
44.03, 4719, and 46.10 million baht, representing increases
(reductions) of (17.54%), 7.20%, and (2.39%) respectively, not
including losses from foreign exchange rates and interest payable.

Interest payable in 2001- 2003 totaled 0.27, 1.77 and 1.08
million baht, representing increases (reductions) of (81.42%), 557.04%

and (38.90%) respectively.
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In 2001, sales and management costs decreased by 9.36
million baht, or 17.54%, due to efficient cost management
policies which led to efficient control and reduction. Sales costs
and management costs mostly decreased by 3.41 million baht.
But at the same time, there was an increase for certain types of
costs such as for costs bank fees, which increased by 0.85
million from year 2000, director remuneration which rose by 0.20
million, cost for additional association members amounting to
0.18 million baht and an increase of 0.27 million in bad debts.

Meanwhile, payable interest decreased by 81.42 % because
of cost management policy, and the substantial difference between
deposit rates and loan rates. The company thus tried to cut down on
bank credit. But at the same time, most of the payable interest came
from L/C, T/R credit and from car hire-purchases.

In 2002, sales and management costs rose by 3.16 million
baht or 7.20% due to a management cost control policy that led to
efficient cost reduction while total sales rose at a higher ratio, with
investment in sales and management costs proving to be worthwhile.
This led to a higher ratio of income generation, while sales and
management costs were also mostly down compared to 2001.
However, at the same time certain costs rose from last year, such as
a rise of 1.27 million baht for salary and benefits or 0.18%, a rise in
irretrievable debts costs of 2.48 million baht or 14.33%. As the
company had a policy to protect against risk from flood-ravaged
debtors, the company thus increased its reserves from the previous
year.

Interest payments, meanwhile, rose by 1.50 million baht or
557.04% due to payment policy to T/R creditors and foreign
creditors, under which payment terms were extended in the 2",
3rd and 4th quarters, thus leading to the burden of increased
interest payments.

With regard to foreign exchange losses, there were foreign
exchange profits of 1.80 million baht in 2001, while in 2002 there
was a foreign exchange loss of 2.52 million baht, representing a
4.32 million baht difference or a change of 239.56%. This was due
to fluctuation of the baht which weakened continuously, leading to
increased foreign exchange losses.

Income tax in 2002 came to 7.03 million baht, whereas in
2001 the company sold off its investments in subsidiary companies.
This led to a loss in taxes of 49.79 million and thus no income tax
payments for 2001. There was also a 15 million baht loss from taxes
which could be entered as Credit and this led to an increase in

income tax in 2002, compared to the previous year.
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In 2003, sales and management costs fell by 1.13 million baht
or 2.39% compared to 2002. However, if bad and doubtful debts,
and foreign exchange profits are not taken into consideration, it can
be seen that sales and management costs amounting to 40.31
million baht in 2002 and 45.05 million baht in 2003, represent a rise
of 4.74 million baht or 11.76%. This was the result of a policy to
manage and control various costs to rise at only the minimum and
make investment worthwhile so as to generate income with the
highest efficiency.

However, there were certain rising costs which could not be
controlled and which came from debtor management. Loss from debt
restructuring was acknowledged in the form of Net Present Value
(NPV) which came from extending payment contracts worth 2.38
million baht or 0.44% of total income. At the same time, salary costs
and various benefits, including commission, rose by 1.89 million baht
or 0.35% of total income. Other costs rose by 0.47 million baht or
0.09% of total income.

Bad debts and doubtful debts fell by 3.32 million baht or
75.93% due to the company’s policy to protect against and reduce
risks involving bad debtors, through efficient debtor management and
exercising caution in selecting good customers to extend commercial
credit. This was able to control and reduce bad debts.

As for profits (loss) from foreign exchange in 2002, there was
a loss of 2.52 million baht and in 2003, foreign exchange profits
amounted to 1.69 million baht, a rise of 4.21 million baht or 167.30%.
This was the result of a continually stronger baht, with an average
exchange rate from the beginning of 2003 to the end of 2003 that
was 3 baht less to the dollar. Efficient risk management also pushed
foreign exchange profits higher.

Corporate income tax in 2002 amounted to 7.03 million baht
and in 2003 amounted to 16.77 million baht. This represented an
increase of 9.74 million baht or 138.55%. These came as a result of
company loss in 2002 from the sale of tax investment money amounting
to 15 million baht that crossed over from 2001, which then led to a
decrease in corporate income tax. In 2003, net profits rose, causing
corporate taxes to increase from that of the previous year.

The above operational results led to initial profits during
2001 - 2003 to total 64.08, 77.57 million and 100.18 million baht
respectively, representing a percentage of 14.71, 16.00 and 18.95
respectively.

Operational profits in 2001 - 2003 came to 21.86, 30.38 and
55.78 million baht respectively, representing percentage of 5.02, 6.27
and 10.55 respectively.
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Net profits in 2001 - 2003 came to 7.85, 29.81 and 42.86
million baht, or a percentage of 1.76, 6.05 and 10.55 respectively.

Return on equity during 2001 - 2003 were 2.55%, 9.66%, and
13.10 respectively.

In 2001, total sales decreased by 14.34% and consolidated
earnings decreased by 14.91% owing to the occurrence of floods in
the middle of the year causing farmers to have reduced purchasing
power. The company saw these problems and made adjustments in
its marketing strategy, in line with the situation. Because of this, the
company was able to manage total distribution volume for each
product to achieve a higher initial profit rate, and undertook efficient
cost management. This made initial profit rates rise by 14.71%,
compared to year 2000, and sales costs and management costs
decreased by 4.15%. And by setting a policy to reduce risk from
foreign exchange rates, the company made a total profit of 1.80
million baht from foreign exchange, or 0.41% of consolidated
earnings. At the same time, the company sold off a total of 4.59
million shares in affiliated companies in the 3rd quarter of 2001,
leading to a loss from the sale of a total of 12.09 million baht in
investments. This is in addition to prior share of losses of subsidiary
companies totaling 9.02 million baht, which brings the overall total to
21.11 million baht, or 4.77% of consolidated earnings. This caused
net profit to fall by 1.76% and shareholder return rate to fall by
2.55%.

In 2002, total sales rose by 11.28% which resulted from
government and private sector assistance to farmers following flood-
ing during the 3rd and 4th quarters, helping farmers to recover more
quickly. At the same time, there were stricter measures against sub-
standard products. This led to less market competition as these
products could not be sold. In addition to this, an adjustment in
marketing and pricing strategies to suit changes in costs, also led to
higher market share. This was also coupled with the fact that new
products were able to make higher profit rates. There was also
efficient management of production costs which led production costs
and selling costs to increase at a lower ratio than the rise in total
sales. This made initial profit rate rise to 16.00%

Under a set policy for efficient management and control,
selling and management costs increased at a lower ratio compared
to the rise in total sales. There was also a policy to prevent risk
from irretrievable debts and increased reserves were set aside for
this, making operational profit for 2002 rise to 6.79%.

At the same time, the baht's fluctuation made it difficult to

implement a policy to prevent against foreign exchange risks, and as
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a result, foreign exchange losses increased. And due to the fact that
in 2002, there were no effects from the operations of subsidiary
companies, income tax burden was higher and net profit rose 6.05%,
leading shareholder returns to increase to 9.66%.

In 2003, total sales rose by 9.09%, due to government policy
to support and assist farmers in production, marketing and finances.
This led to higher agricultural prices and improved the financial
position of farmers. At the same time, suppression and control of
sub-standard products led to less market competition. Marketing and
pricing strategies were devised in accordance with market conditions
in which raw material prices were lower because of new sources of
cheaper and good quality raw materials. The stability of the baht also
reduced raw material costs. The company was thus able to set
suitable prices and gain a greater share of the market. The company
also had efficient production management and this made production
costs and sales costs to rise at a lower rate than total sales. As a
result, the company saw initial profits rise by 18.95%.

Overall sales and management costs fell, as already stated,
with the company’s policy to manage and control costs to rise at
only the minimum rate and make investment most worthwhile, so as
to make the most efficient income generation. There was also a
policy for careful debtor management so as to reduce risk of bad
debts, with a great reduction bad debts and doubtful debts seen in
2003. This resulted in the company seeing operational profit in 2003
increase by 55.78%.

At the same time, the increased stability of the baht and
company policy for efficient management of foreign exchange risks,
led to higher foreign exchange profits in 2003. The company’s net
profits thus rose by 8.01% and return of equity in 2003 rose by
13.10%.

Total assets in 2001-2003 amounting to 355.20, 356.57 and
407.75 million baht respectively, marked an increase (decrease) at a
percentage of (13.16), 0.38 and 14.35 respectively.

Total liabilities in 2001-2003 amounting to 57.07, 36.85, and
73.17 million baht, marked an increase (decrease) of (36.91%), (36.02),
98.58 and respectively.

Shareholder equity in 2001-2003 amounting to 297.61, 319.72
and 334.58 million baht, marked an increase (decrease) of (6.34%),
7.43%, and 4.65% respectively.

In 2001, total distribution volume fell by 14.34% while
operational cash flow fell 101.57%, and liquidity ratio rose from
2.95 in 2000 to 4.26 in 2001. Quick ratio rose from 1.91 in 2000,

to 2.56 in 2001. The 9.62% reduction in circulating assets from
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2000 and the 37.48% fall in circulating liabilities, improved the
liquidity ratio. While cash liquidity ratio decreased because of
faster payments to trade creditors, with debt collection period
extended from 92 days in 2000 to 107 days in 2001. Products
were also sold within a shorter period of time, from within 66
days in 2000, to 88 days in 2001, and debt repayments were
faster, from 63 days in 2000, to 53 days in 2001. Thus in 2001,
Cash Cycle increased to 142 days.

The reduced circulating liabilities comprised commercial
creditors which decreased by as much as 67.75%. Because of
inventory management policy, there was suitable inventory for
demand and reduced raw material costs. Total raw material
orders decreased by 2.86% from 2000. Consideration was also
given to repayment period in order to economize on interest and
other fees.

Cash flow from investment activities increased by 47.88%
from repayment of loans to subsidiary companies. Also the company
paid a total of 28 million baht for dividends and used L/C, T/R credit
for ordering 22.11 million baht in raw materials, leading to an
increase in bank loans from year 2000, and an increase of 95.13%
in cash flow from procurement activities.

In 2002, total sales of the company rose by 11.28% while
operational cash flow rose 3,128.61%, with liquidity ratio up from
4.26 in 2001 to 6.08 in 2002. Quick ratio rose from 2.56 in 2001 to
3.67 in 2002. Cash flow liquidity ratio rose from (0.02) in 2001 to
0.76 in 2002 due to classification of related debtor companies to
debtors and long-term loans to related companies. The classification
led to a reduction in circulating debts totaling 28.81 million baht. The
company also made quicker payments to T/R creditors and
commercial creditors, leading to a reduction in circulating debts.

Meanwhile, debt collection period was shortened from 107
days in 2001 to 83 days in 2002. Product selling period were also
shorter from 88 days in 2001 to 78 days in 2002, and debt payments
were also quicker from 53 days in 2001 to 17 days in 2002, making
Cash Cycle rise to 144 days.

An analysis of the above ratio showed a trend for improvement
from the previous year, as a result of a policy for stock management
in which a reduction of 8.15% is seen. This is for sufficiency in
meeting market demand at appropriate periods and to prevent
excess stocking which would lead to higher storage costs, with
consideration given to Lead Time for efficient product ordering
management, and strict policy and management of debtors, not

including related debtor companies. This led to quicker payment
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collection and as a result quicker payments to T/R creditors and
commercial creditors. Company liquidity also became better, creating
greater operational cash flow.

Cash flow for investment activities increased 126.71% as a
result of the company freeing itself from the burden of deposit
guarantor and repayment of loans from related companies, including
the sale of company cars totaling 11.31 million baht. At the same
time, the company gave loans to related companies and bought
assets totaling 8.50 million baht, leading to a rise in cash flow from
investment activities compared to the previous year.

Cash flow from procurement activities improved company
liquidity and thus the company was able to repay T/R creditors
before schedule and give out dividends in 2002 totaling 20.40
million baht. This led to a reduction of 335.23% in cash flow from
procurement activities.

In 2003, company sales income rose by 9.09% while cash
flow from operations rose by 35.04%, with liquidity ratio falling from
6.08 in 2002 to 3.98 in 2003. Fast liquidity fell from 3.67 in 2002 to
2.76 in 2003. Current ratio rose from 0.76 in 2002 to 0.88 in 2003.
Higher sales led to an increase in stocks and commercial debtors.
Also overdrawing and loans from financial institutions rose by 285.91%
as a result of raw material purchase orders to meet higher market
needs. This thus caused a downward trend in the ratio.

Meanwhile, debt collection was faster. From 81 days in 2002,
it dropped to 71 days in 2003. Sales duration on average was also
faster from 77 days in 2002 to 71 days in 2003 and debt payments
were also faster, from 17 days in 2002 to 11 days in 2003, thus
reducing the cash cycle to 131 days.

Analysis results show a downward trend in the liquidity
ratio due to increased total sales and inventory management
policy. As a result, inventory were found to have risen by only
3.53% from the year 2002, while total sales rose by 9.09%. Thus
it can be seen that the company managed to keep inventory
within market demand so as to reduce inventory costs and avoid
the problem of deteriorated goods. The company also made
purchase orders according to market demand periods, taking into
consideration lead time. This led to efficient management of
inventory.

The company laid down a cautious policy and management
of debtors, which did not include debtors of related companies.
This led to faster collection and enabled the company to make
faster payments to T/R and commercial creditors. Thus with this

improved liquidity, there was increased operational cash flow.
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Cash flow from investment activities rose by 386.85% due to
the relieving of guarantee funds and payment of loans from related
companies, including the sale of worn-out company cars which
totaled 16.82 million baht. Meanwhile, the company spent only 3.16
million on car purchases, using hire-purchase to replace the old lot.
This led to increased cash flow from investment activities compared
to the previous year.

Cash flow from financial procurement activities rose by 120.51%
because of raw material purchase orders to meet increased market
demand. This led to increased loans from financial institutions,
while the company enjoyed good liquidity. The company paid out
28 million baht in dividends and paid car hire-purchase creditors a
total of 0.38 million.

When taking into account investment structure and that the
ratio of debts to shareholder was 0.22 times in 2003, this
represented an increase from the previous year. There was also
a big increase in loans from financial institutions due to increased
purchases of raw materials from abroad. However, this ratio was
still a very low ratio and reflected the company’s careful and
efficient management of funds. The company had a policy of
using rotating debts to invest in rotating assets so as to get the
highest returns, taking into consideration that outlay capital should
not be excessive and should provide the greatest return to the
shareholder. The company also kept the ratio from becoming too
high for fear of financial risk to the company.

For the main factors that are important and bear effect on
operations in 2004, it is expected that the overall economy will
continue to expand from 2003, with positive factors on many sides.
These include various supporting policies in the government sector,
as well as in major and small business operations, and people in
rural areas, all of which will help in enabling the GDP to be able to
increase by 8%.

In agricultural sector production, the Government will continue
to provide its full support in all areas such as:

1. Technology development - Developing production
technology by educating farmers and providing good plant breeds
in order to further develop quality of output.

2. Marketing - Helping to sustain agricultural prices by
providing farmers with loans using their agricultural goods as
collateral. This will keep agricultural prices from falling too low
and let market forces operate on their own.

3. Finances - Providing loan support which might in the

form of a village fund, low-interest loans and loans derived from
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transforming assets into capital, so as to create opportunity for

farmers.

4. Promote agricultural processing - This is done by creating
added value to products which would develop product quality and
enable it to go on world markers, such as through the One Tambon
One Product Project (OTOP). Products under this project have now
become export products going onto world markets.

These are the main factors improving the financial conditions
of farmers. At the same time, the government and private sectors,
through the Thai Crop Protection Association joined forces to
control and check sub-standard products which when used by
farmers, lead to higher costs for farmers and yields which do not
meet expectations. This, in turn, reduces farmers’ purchasing
power. The company is aware of the importance of this problem
and at present is able to control this problem to a certain level,
making sub-standard products more difficult to market.

Raw material prices are another factor affecting product prices.
Most raw materials are imported and thus is affected by fluctuating
foreign exchange rates all the time. The rise and fall of raw material
prices depends on the stability of the baht. This is an outside factor
which cannot be controlled, but risks from foreign exchange damage
can be reduced by following measures :

1. Company policy to undertake Forward Rate purchase on
foreign exchange for raw material imports to reduce risks with
consideration of favorable exchange rate.

2. Practicing more caution when ordering raw materials,
seeing that it concords with needs. This will reduce damage from
excessive inventory. However, Lead Time is considered to avoid
short of inventory.

3. Making careful consideration before opening new trade
accounts and expanding credit lines to prevent damage from bad
debts and strictly performing in accordance with collection policy.

4. Disseminate knowledge on technology and correct usage
of product to increase yields, promote safety, with no environmental
effects.

These above factors affect the company’s operations and
financial position. Therefore, it is the policy of the company to try and
reduce the adverse effects from these various factors through the
above mentioned measures. Although, these are outside factors that
cannot be controlled, it is expected that this policy will reflect in

better operations for the company.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

To  The Shareholders and Board of Directors of
PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the balance sheet of Pato Chemical Industry Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, the
related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pato
Chemical Industry Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, the results of its operations, the change in its

shareholders’ equity and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion | draw attention to Note 16 to the financial statements, on December 9, 2003, the Company was
sued as an alleged guarantor of the former subsidiary, Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd. for the outstanding debt plus interest of Baht
25.82 million. The Company has denied the allegation and hired a professional law firm to defend this case. Since the loss from the
outcome of this lawsuit (if any) cannot be estimated at present, the Company is not able to set a loss provision for this case in the

financial statement.

(Mr. Jadesada Hungsapruek)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 3759
Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited
Bangkok, Thailand
February 28, 2004
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BALANCE SHEETS

PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Baht
ASSETS Note 2003 2002
e o e e e e e e e o e e
CURRENT ASSETS I I
Cash and cash equivalents : 97,360,301 : 31,142,755
Current investments | - | 464,056
Trade accounts receivable, net 4 | 103,394,867 | 94,537,958
Current portion of loan and : :
receivable - related company 6 | - | 9,000,000
Inventories 5 | 86,032,991 | 83,103,089
Other current assets I 2,493,175 I 5,682,960
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS | 289,281,334 | 223,930,818
NON-CURRENT ASSETS | |
Investment in related company : 1,406,515 : 1,406,515
Long-term receivable and loan to related company 6 | 29,183,370 | 28,813,108
Property, plant and equipment - net 7 | 74241176 | 81,474,172
Restricted cash fixed deposits : - : 7,130,864
Withholding income tax for refund | 6,488,813 | 6,488,813
Deposits and guaranteed I 4,000 I 82,360
Land not used in operation : 7,030,252 : 7,030,252
Other non-current assets | 115,394 | 208,715
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS ! 118,469,520 ! 132,634,799
TOTAL ASSETS | 407,750,854 | 356,565,617

Notes to financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
Baht

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Note 2003 2002

CURRENT LIABILITIES

-
I I
Short-term loans from financial institutions 8 : 43,349,561 : 11,233,530
Trade accounts payable - related companies 3 | 1,430,561 | 1,952,811
- other companies | 11,668,638 | 10,812,987
Current portion of hire-purchase contracts payable 9 : 901,716 : 525,863
Payables from forward exchange contracts | - | 13,997
Other current liabilities | |
Accrued income tax and accrued expenses : 15,179,789 : 12,136,153
Others | 199,688 | 173,697
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ! 72,729,953 ! 36,849,038
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES i i
Hire-purchase contracts payable 9 | 444 117 |
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ! aaa117 |
TOTAL LIABILITIES : 73,174,070 : 36,849,038
Share capital | |
Authorized share capital I |
14,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 par value : 140,000,000 : 140,000,000
Issued and fully paid-up share capital | |
14,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 par value I 140,000,000 I 140,000,000
Additional paid-in capital : :
Premium on share capital | 135,000,000 | 135,000,000
Retained earnings | |
Appropriated for legal reserve : 14,000,000 : 14,000,000
Unappropriated | 45,576,784 | 30,716,579
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ! 334,576,784 ! 319,716,579
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY i 407,750,854 i 356,565,617
[ |
] ]

Notes to financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Revenues
Sales
Gain on exchange rate
Other income
Total revenues
Expenses
Cost of sales
Selling and administrative expenses
Loss on exchange rate
Directors’ remuneration
Total expenses
Profit (loss) before interest and income tax expenses
Interest expense

Income tax expenses

NET PROFIT (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITES
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit (loss) from ordinary activities

Note

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Baht
2003 2002
—_ ————— e
| |
: 508,754,678 : 484,689,937
| 1,694,361 | -
| 4936260 | 8,230,823
: 535,385,299 : 492,920,760
| |
I 428571273 | 407.117,031
: 45,483,831 : 43,691,397
| - | 2,517,179
! 618,056 ! 981,564
: 474,673,160 : 454307171
| 60,712,139 | 38,613,589
| 1,083,929 : 1773776
I 16768005 | 7,028,589
| 42,860,205 | 29,811,204
I I
| |
| 3.06 | 213
| |
| |

Notes to financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Baht
Share capital ~ Premium on Retained earnings (deficits)
issued and ordinary Legal
Note paid-up share reserve Unappropiated Total

—_————— e e e e e ————
Beginning balance, 2002 140,000,000 135,000,000 14,000,000 8,605,355 I 297,605,355 I
Net profit for the year 2002 - - - 29,811,224 : 29,811,224 :
Cash dividend paid 15 - - - (7,700,000) | (7,700,000) |
Ending balance, 2002 140,000,000 135,000,000 14,000,000 30,716,579 | 319,716,579 |
Net profit for the year 2003 : - : 42,860,205 | 42,860,205 |
Cash dividend paid 15 - - - (28,000,000) ! (28,000,000) !
1 1
Ending balance, 2003 140,000,000 135,000,000 14,000,000 45,576,784 I 334,576,784 I
[ |
1 ]

Notes to financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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Fo unswdans l (3,157,976) l (1,347,667)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
Baht

Note 2003 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-
I I
Net profit (loss) : 42,860,205 : 29,811,224
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net | |
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities | |
Unrealized (gain) loss on exchange rate : (352,813) : 128,799
Provision for doubtful accounts | 1,050,739 | 4,366,220
Loss on debt restructuring | 2,380,698 |
Depreciation : 11,194,133 : 11,977,051
Gain on disposal of fixed assets | (1,754,596) | (420,561)
Income loss from operating before changing I I
in operating assets and liabilities : 55,378,366 : 45,862,733
(Increase) decrease in operating assets | |
Trade accounts and note receivable I (9,907,648) I (9,228,873)
Inventories : (2,929,902) : 7,375,865
Other current assets | 2,438,825 | (188,190)
Other non-current assets I 89,829 I 198,633
Increase (Decrease) in operating liabilities : :
Trade accounts and note payable | 341,580 | (13,427,274)
Accured income tax and accured expenses I 3,043,636 I 6,229,778
Other current liabilities l 11,994 l 39,694
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities | 48,466,680 | 36,862,366
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES I I
Decrease (increase) in current investments : 464,056 : 208,655
Decrease (increase) in loan to related company | - | (7,150,643)
Decrease (increase) in long-term loan and : :
receivable - related company | 7,000,000 | 689,758
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash fixed deposits | 7,130,864 | 9,985,875
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets : 2,228,972 : 420,561
Acquisition of fixed assets | (3,157,976) | (1,347,667)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities | 13,665,916 | 2,806,539
I I
| |

Notes to financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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i g ldduengldiiu 3 deu | 40,051,534 | -
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o . I i

2. % A9189EHINNIA | |
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MESuld : 10,345,818 : 3,338,653

| |

| |

| |

| |

I I

| |
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
Baht

Note 2003 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3. In 2002, the Company transferred a port of accounts receivable,
note receivable, short-term loan and accrued interest income at the
amount of Baht 10,385,718 Baht 15,415,369, Baht 11,750,643 and
Baht 951,136, respectively, to show under “long-term receivable and
loans to related compay” in balance sheets.

4. In 2003, The Company had entered into hire-purchase contract for

certain fixed assets amounting of Baht 1,803,400.

-
I I
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans from financial institutions : 32,557,767 : (12,695,371)
Repayment of hire-purchase contract payable | (375,715) | (972,947)
Dividend paid | (28,000,000) | (7,700,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ! 4,182,052 ! (21,368,318)
I I
Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash equivalents | 66,314,648 | 18,300,587
Unrealized loss on exchange rate on cash | |
in bank in foreign currency ! (97,102) ! (51,348)
I I
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS | 66,217,546 | 18,249,239
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD | 31,142,755 | 12,893,516
I I
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD | 97,360,301 | 31,142,755
I I
Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information : :
1. Cash paid during the period | |
Cash in hand and at banks | 57,308,767 | 31,142,755
Promissory note not exceed 3 months ! 40,051,534 !
| |
Total | 97,360,301 | 31,142,755
2. Cash paid during the period for : : :
Interest | 1,083,929 | 1,773,776
Corporate income tax | 10,345,818 | 3,338,653
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
1 1

Notes to financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

GENERAL INFORMATION

a) Address and legal status
The Company has registered to be a limited public company under the Public Company Limited Act with the Ministry
of Commerce on October 18, 1993, and its head office is located at 3388, New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi,
Huaykwang, Bangkok, Thailand.

b)  Nature the company’s operations
The company is a formulator and importer of pesticide.

c) Number of employees
As at December 31, 2003 and 2002, the company has 170 employees and 159 employees, respectively.

d) Supplemental disclosures of expense information
Supplemental disclosures of expense information for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Thousand Baht

2003 2002
Depreciation 11,194 11,977
Employee benefit costs 46,506 43,163

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis for preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with and comply with accounting principles
generally accepted in Thailand and presented accordingly to the Instruction of the Department of Commercial
Registration, the Ministry of Commerce, for Public Limited Company.
2.2 Recognition of revenues and expenses
The Company recognizes the revenues on sales upon delivery of products and customer acceptance, net of
discounts (if any).
The Company recognizes other income and expenses on the accrual basis.
2.3 Allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company provides allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated collection losses that may be
incurred in the collection of all receivables. The estimated losses are based on historical collection experience
coupled with a review of the current status of existing receivables.
2.4 Inventories
Construction materials and other inventories are valued at cost (average method) or net realizable value,
whichever is lower.
2.5 Long-Term Investments in Shares of Related Company (General Investment)
Long-term investments in shares of related company is stated at cost. The Company recognizes gain or loss on
disposal of the investment in the statement of income and also impairment loss on the investment.
2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
The Company depreciates its buildings and equipment acquired before 1986 by the declining balance method,
and buildings and equipment acquired after 1986 by the straight-line method, over the estimated useful lives of the

assets as follows :
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Years

Building 20
Machinery and equipment 5
Transportation equipment 5-10
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5

Land not used in operation is valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower.
2.7 Impairment of Assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever, the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized in current operations.

2.8 Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled
by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiar-
ies are related parties of the company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel,
including directors and officers of the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies
associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,
and not merely the legal form.

2.9 Foreign currency conversions

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted into Thai Baht at rate of exchange ruling on the balance
sheet date. Transactions during the year are translated at rates prevailing on the transaction date.

Gains or losses on exchange are credited or charged to current operations.

The transactions which have been hedged by forward contract agreements are recorded at the forward contract
rate. Premium or discount on forward contract agreements are amortized to expenses or income over the period of
each contract.

2.10 Using of Accounting Estimation

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

2.11 Finance Lease

Leases of assets that substantially transfer to the Company all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets and
that the Company intends to exercise the option of the leases to purchase the assets at the expiration of the lease
term, are accounted for as finance leases.

At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the asset is recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to pay future rentals. Finance charges are charged to the current period operations in proportion to
the capital balances outstanding.

2.12 Operating Lease

Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are
classified as operating lease. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

2.13 Income tax

The Company records income tax expense, if any, based on the amount currently payable under the Revenue

Code.
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2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and deposits at financial institutions with an original maturity of 3

months or less and excluded cash at banks which are used for guarantee.

3. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED COMPANIES

A portion of the Company’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses across from transactions with certain related

have already been reflected in the financial statements.

The transactions were carried out as follow :

companies, These companies are related through common shareholders and/or directorships, The effects of these transactions

Baht

Relationship  Pricing Policy 2003 2002

Statements of income

Interest income

Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

(formerly name :

Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.)
Guarantee income

Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

(formerly name :

Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.)
Purchase

NN Chemical Corporation

(formerly name : Nissho Iwai Corporation)  Shareholder

Rental

Kentex Properties Co., Ltd.

(formerly name : Kentex Chemical Co., Ltd.) Co-director

Outstanding balances at the balance sheet dates

Accrued interest income

Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.
(formerly name : Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.)
Total

Long-term receivable and loan

Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd.
(formerly name : Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd.)
Total

Trade account payable - foreign

NN Chemical Corporation
(formerly name : Nissho Iwai Corporation)
Total

Investment

Investment

2%-7.5% p.a. - 1,560,669

Free of charge - -

Market price 15,760,017 24,418,385

Baht 130.43
Per sq.m. Per month 360,000 360,000

Baht
As at December As at December
31, 2003 31,2002

750,959

750,959

29,183,370 37,813,108
29,183,370 37,813,108
1,430,561 1,952,811
1,430,561 1,952,811
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Accounts receivable - local

Notes receivable
Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Net

Aging of problem account receivables

Over 3 to 6 months
Over 6 to 12 months
Over 12 months
Total
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Number of problem account receivables

INVENTORIES

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw material and supplies

Goods in-transit

Total

4. TRADE ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE - OTHER COMPANIES

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE AND LOAN TO RELATED COMPANYuU1In

Balance, beginning of period

Transfer from short-term loan and receivable

Deduction from receive during the period
Lose on debt restructuring
Balance, end of period

Less portion due within one year

Net

Baht
As at December As at December
— 312008 312002
64,226,033 65,657,799
47,064,773 35,725,359
111,290,806 101,383,158
(7,895,939) (6,845,200)
103,394,867 94,537,958
Million Baht
As at December As at December
31, 2003 31,2002
T T e
- 0.02
6.85 6.83
9.53 6.85
7.90 6.85
44 43
Baht
As at December As at December
__3nzws s
11,249,347 11,720,775
1,486,818 2,033,297
71,060,380 69,349,017
2,236,446
86,032,991 83,103,089
Baht
As at December As at December
__3nzws sz
37,813,108
750,960 38,502,866
(7,000,000) (689,758)
(2,380,698)
29,183,370 37,813,108
- (9,000,000)
29,183,370 28,813,108
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The above long-term receivable and loan included account receivable, note receivable, short-term loan and accrued

interest income - Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd. (formerly name : Acron Plastic Industry Co.,Ltd.) (PPIC) at the amount of
Baht 10,385,718, Baht 15,415,369, Baht 11,750,643 and Baht 1,702,096, respectively. PPIC has committed to repay every
quarter from December 23, 2002 to December 1, 2005. The Company charged interest at 2% - 7.5% per annum, and it will not
charge interest on the above receivable and loan since January 1, 2003.

On December 30, 2003, the Company entered into a debt payment reschedule agreement with PPIC. The PPIC will repay
to the company by monthly installment at Baht 1,000,000 totalling 30 installments and the final installment at Baht 564,069
starting on January 5, 2005. without interest charging. The Company recorded loss on debt restructuring of Baht 2,380,698 in
the statement of income. This was a difference between present value of debts of Baht 29,183,370 (Discounted by interest at
3.53% per annum - effective interest rate of former agreement) and book value of debt before restructuring of Baht 31,564,068.
In addition, the Company has a option to convert up to Baht 15 million of the outstanding debt into ordinary shares with a
conversion price at the par value (presently at Baht 10 per share) within two years from the signing of this agreement. If PPIC
fails to perform, the total outstanding debt shall become immediately due and shall pay in full with default interest at the rate
7.5% per annum.

For the consideration of booking a loss provision for the outstanding debt of PPIC the Company has reviewed the cashflow
projection and debt repayment schedule provided by PPIC. Moreover, Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd. was able to obtain a
Baht 70 million banking facility from a Thai commercial bank and also signed a restructuring/capital increase agreement with a
foreign investor. The Company’s management believes that the Company will receive all debt payment in due time. Therefore,
no loss provision is booked in the income statement.

At the shareholders’ meeting held on April 23, 2001, the shareholders resolved the credit line for financial support to such

company amounting to Baht 10 million.

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Baht
Balance Addition Deduction Balance
December 31,2002 December 31,2003
At Cost Y
Land 11,462,000 - - 11,462,000
Building 93,803,218 - - 93,803,218
Machinery 34,288,581 281,703 - 34,570,284
Factory equipment 7,183,234 757,954 - 7,941,188
Furniture, Fixtures and office equipment 15,560,854 298,616 168,380 15,691,090
Vehicles 33,665,673 3,097,240 5,289,422 31,473,491
Total 195,963,560 4,435,513 5,457,802 194,941,271
Less accumulated depreciation
Building 40,404,183 4,557,394 - 44,961,577
Machinery 32,221,884 956,981 - 33,178,865
Factory equipment 3,079,790 612,836 - 3,692,626
Furniture, Fixtures and office equipment 13,997,047 693,127 168,380 14,521,794
Vehicles 24,786,484 4,373,795 4,815,046 24,345,233
Total 114,489,388 11,194,133 4,983,426 120,700,095
Net 81,474,172 74,241,176

As at December 31, 2003 and 2002, land, building and machinery at the amount of Baht 60.30 million and Baht 64.86

million, respectively, were mortgaged as collateral against bank overdraft and loans from banks.
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As at December 31, 2003, the Company has fully depreciated machinery, factory equipment, furniture fixture and office
equipment, and vehicles at the amount of Baht 30,535,462 Baht 9,686,181 Baht 341,993 Baht 7,876,528, respectively.

8. SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

Baht
As at December As at December
— 312008 812002
Liabilities under trust receipts 43,349,561 11,233,530
Total 43,349,561 11,233,530

As at December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company has the facilities available with bank overdrafts and loans from bank
in amount of Baht 522 million and Baht 497 million, respectively, which bear interest at the rate of 8.25 per annum (2002 :
8.25% per annum) which are collateralized by land and buildings (Note 7) and certain directors.

In 2003, the Company carried interest on short-term loans at the average rate of 4.5% - 5.25% per annum.

9. HIRE-PURCHASE CONTRACTS PAYABLE

Baht
As at December As at December
— 31,2008 312002
Hire-purchase contracts payable 1,427,685 525,863
Less current portion of hire - purchase (901,716) (525,863)
Less differed interest (81,852)
Net 444 117

The ownership on the assets purchase under hire-purchase contracts will be transferred to the Company when the last

installment has been paid.

10. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

2003 2002
Net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders (Baht) 42,860,205 29,811,224
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (Shares) 14,000,000 14,000,000
Basic earning per share (Baht per share) 3.06 213

11. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
Almost all of the Company’s agrochemical sales are in domestic market. Accordingly, the Company has are business

segment and one geographic segment.
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12. EMPLOYEE’S PROVIDENT FUND

The Company established a contributory registered provident fund in accordance with the provident fund Act, B.E.2530.

The provident fund plan was registered on May 29, 1997.

Under the plan, the employees contribute monthly the amounts equivalent 5% of their basic salaries. The Company
contributes at the rates of 5% of the employees basic salaries. The Company appointed a fund manager to manage the fund
in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed in the Ministerial Regulation No.2 B.E. 2532 issued under the Provident
fund Act. B.E. 2530.

The Company’s contributions charged to expenses for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 amounted to Baht

1.15 million and Baht 0.87 million, respectively.

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Risks relating to significant financial instruments held by the company and its risk management policy are summarized as
follows.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and notes accounts receivable. The Company’s
prudent credit policy and its diversified customer. The maximum credit risk exposure is equal to the book value of accounts
receivable in the balance sheet.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the company’s
operations and its cash flows The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to bank overdrafts and short-term
loan from financial institution with a floating interest rate, the details are set out in Note 8.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk, or funding risk, is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell financial assets quickly at close to its fair
value.

The Company’s financial assets comprises of cash, deposits at financial institutions, accounts receivable and inventories
which are liquid and able to sold at close to this fair value when the Company wishes to raise find.

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk relates to its trust receipts and accounts payable foreign in US dollars
and amount due to related companies in Yen. The Company primarily utilizes forward exchange contracts with maturity of less
than one year to hedge exchange rate risk relating to the repayment of some of the trust receipts and accounts payable foreign,
However, the Company is also exposed to the effect of foreign exchange movements on its remaining accounts payable foreign
in US dollars and amount due to related in Yen which are currently not hedged by any derivative financial instruments.

Forward exchange contracts outstanding on December 31, 2003 are summarized below.

Exchange rates
Foreign Currency Amount Baht/USD Maturity

Trust receipts accounts uUsSD - - R

Forward exchange contracts outstanding on December 31, 2002 are summarized below.
Exchange rates
Foreign Currency Amount Baht/USD Maturity

Trust receipts accounts uSD 45,952 43.025 27-1-46
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Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices or discounted
cash flow models.

The carrying values of almost of financial assets and liabilities is approximate their fair values except for long-term
investment, long-term receivable and loan to related company and withholding income tax for refund cannot be calculated their

fair values, accordingly, no disclose is made.

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
As at December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company:-
a) was contingently liable for guarantee of purchase from credit facilities granted from a bank of a former subsidiary -
Plastic Precision Industry Co., Ltd. (formerly name : Acron Plastic Industry Co., Ltd) totaling of Baht 19.99 million.
b) has the contingent liability from issuing letter of guarantee by a local bank in the amount of Baht 0.23 million.
¢) Has long-term lease agreement covering office space ending May 31, 2021. The rental charges amounted to Baht
30,000 per month.

15. DIVIDENDS
Dividends payable are not accounted for until they have been ratified at the Shareholders’ Meeting. The Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders held on April 3, 2003 authorized the dividends which appropriated from net profit and pay to the
shareholders on April 10, 2003, 14 million shares, Baht 2 each total amount of Baht 28 million.
The Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 29, 2002 authorized the dividends which appropriated from
net profit and pay to the shareholders on May 7, 2002, 14 million shares, Baht 0.55 each total amount of Baht 7.7 million.

16. LAWSUIT
On December 9, 2003, the Company was sued as an alleged guarantor of the former subsidiary Plastic Precision Industry
Co., Ltd. for the outstanding debt plus interest of Baht 25.82 million. The Company has denied the allegation and hired a
professional law firm to defend this case. Since the loss from the outcome of this lawsuit (if any) cannot be estimated at present,

the Company is not able to set a loss provision for this case in the financial statement.
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PATO CHEMICAL INDUSTRY PUBLIC CO.,LTD.
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Ins: 0-2318-5612-20, 0-2318-0360-9, 0-2314-6076-7, 0-2314-4264 ufnd: 0-2318-0367

3388 Pato Bullding,New Petchburi Rd., Bangkapi,Huay Kwang, Bangkok 10320 Thailand
Tel: 0-2318-5612-20,0-2318-0360-9, 0-2314-6076-7, 0-2314-4264 Fax: 0-2318-0367
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